
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach , FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 01, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Mayor Betty Resch 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Sarah Malega 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Presentation by Richard Pinsky regarding the FY 2022-2023 Legislative Session 

B. Special Events Update by Lauren Bennett, Leisure Services Director 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Regular Meeting - October 6, 2022 

B. Pre-agenda Work Session - October 12, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Resolution 84-2022 - FDOT License Agreement for 1702 Lake Worth Road 

B. Proclamation declaring November as Native American Indian Heritage Month 

C. Third Amendment to Retail Lease with B. F. Enterprises, Inc., the current tenant 

D. Fourth Amendment to Retail Lease with Pura Vida Treats, Inc., the current tenant 

E. Fifth Amendment to Retail Lease with RVRA, LLC, the current tenant 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. Ordinance No. 19-2022 – Second Reading – Adopting amendments to Chapter 7 
“Beaches, Parks and Recreation” to prohibit smoking and vaping in City parks and on 
the City’s beach 



B. Ordinance No. 2022-22 – Second Reading - Amending Section 15-24.1 “Definitions” 
and Section 15-24.5 “Enforcement,” to modify the enforcement process for a noise 
control violation and for other purposes 

C. Ordinance No. 2022-23 – Second Reading - Amending Chapter 2 “Administration,” 
Article X “Supplemental Code Compliance Procedures,” Section 2-86 “Code Citation 
Procedures; Appeals,” Section 2-87 “Civil Penalties,” and Section 2-88 “Classification 
of Infractions” 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of proposed redistricting maps and public input 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Resolution No. 85-2022 – Revised Investment Policy 

B. Resolution No. 86-2022 – FY23 Regional Sewer Budget Amendment 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

November 9 - Pre-agenda Work Session @ 9 AM 
November 15 - Regular Meeting @ 6 PM 
November 23 - Pre-agenda Work Session @ 9 AM 
November 29 - Utility Meeting @ 6 PM 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 81-
2022). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105) 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:00 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:24) Present were Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy (via 

Zoom), Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes and Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were 

City Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Elizabeth Lenihan and City Clerk Melissa Ann 

Coyne. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: (1:03) was led by Commissioner Sarah 

Malega. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:45) was led by Mayor Resch. 

 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/REORDERING (2:05) 

New Business A, Presentation by FAU of the disparity analysis and the four alternative 

redistricting maps for review and discussion was reordered to follow the Consent Agenda.  

Ordinances 2022-12 and 2022-13 were updated as there were slight modifications. 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

agenda as amended. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (3;10) (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. Proclamation declaring October 2022 as LGBT History Month, brought forward by 

Commissioner Malega (3:12) 

B. Presentation of LWB Challenge Coins by Commissioner Malega to Lifeguard Michael 

Saumell, Lt. Xavier DeSalis, Chief of Ocean Rescue Mathew Botts and Aquatics Manager 

Doug Yoakum (8:55) 

C. Presentation of the "Greetings from Lit City" board game by Lauren Bennett, Leisure 

Services Director, and Cindy Ansell, Library Manager (13:03) 

D. Presentation from WGI regarding Mobility Planning and Connectivity (19:08) 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: (38:00) 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: (50:45) 

 

City Manager Davis provided the following report: 

 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, October 6, 2022 

 

 sent thoughts to those affected by Hurricane Ian and reported that the city wanted to help; 

a Water Utility team went to Naples to assist with the water issues caused by Hurricane Ian 

 the Electric Utility crew from Georgia was released to help cities on the west coast of 

Florida due to Hurricane Ian 

 announced that Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk, was elected to the Executive Board of the 

Palm Beach County Municipal Clerks Association 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: (53:09) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (57:19) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

following minutes: 

 

A. Special Meeting - September 8, 2022 

B. Work Session - September 12, 2022  

C. Pre-agenda Work Session - September 14, 2022 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (57:36) (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-

Agendaed items) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

Consent Agenda: 

 

A.  Proclamation declaring October 10, 2022 as The Republic of China’s (Taiwan) 111th 

National Day  

B. Approval of settlement with Adrian Tano Pascual for $175,000 (inclusive of attorney’s 

fees and costs) 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS (reordered to follow the Consent Agenda) 

 

A. Presentation by FAU of the disparity analysis and the four alternative redistricting maps 

for review and discussion (55:15) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: (1:41:52) 

 

A. Ordinance No. 2022-12 – Second Reading – Consideration of an ordinance amending 

Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 

“Definitions,” and Article 2 “Administration”, Division 3 “Permits” adding a new Section 

23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce Housing Program,” providing for a Lake Worth Beach 

Affordable/Workforce Housing Program (1:42:07) 

 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, October 6, 2022 

 

City Attorney Lenihan read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE 2022-12 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” 

ARTICLE 1 “GENERAL PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 2 “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION 

23.1-12 “DEFINITIONS,” ADDING A NEW DEFINITIONS “ANNUAL GROSS 

HOUSEHOLD INCOME,” “GROSS RENT” AND “OVERALL HOUSING EXPENSE;” 

AND ARTICLE 2 “ADMINISTRATION,” DIVISION 3 “PERMITS,” ADDING A NEW 

SECTION 23.2-39 “AFFORDABLE/WORKFORCE HOUSING PROGRAM,” 

PROVIDING FOR AN AFFORDABLE/WORKFORCE HOUSING PROGRAM 

WITHIN THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH; AND PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Ordinance No. 2022-12 amending Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 

“General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” and Article 2 “Administration”, Division 3 

“Permits” adding a new Section 23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce Housing Program,” providing 

for a Lake Worth Beach Affordable/Workforce Housing Program. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

B. Ordinance No. 2022-13 – Second Reading – Consideration of an ordinance amending 

Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 

“Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions,” and Article 4 “Development Standards”, 

adding a new Section 23.4-25 “Micro-Units,” providing for Micro-Unit Housing (1:52:26) 

 

City Attorney Lenihan read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE 2022-13 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” 

ARTICLE 1 “GENERAL PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 2 “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION 

23.1-12 “DEFINITIONS,” ADDING A NEW DEFINITION “MICRO-UNIT;” AND 

ARTICLE 4 “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS,” ADDING A NEW SECTION 23.4-25 

“MICRO-UNITS,” PROVIDING FOR DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR MICRO-

UNITS; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve 

Ordinance No. 2022-13 amending Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 

“General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions,” and Article 4 

“Development Standards”, adding a new Section 23.4-25 “Micro-Units,” providing for Micro-

Unit Housing.  

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

C. Ordinance No. 2022-14 – Second Reading – Consideration of an ordinance amending 

Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, October 6, 2022 

 

“Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions”, and Article 2 “Administration”, Division 3 

“Permits,” Section 23.2-31 “Site Design Qualitative Standards,” providing standards for 

buildings (1:59:22) 

 

City Attorney Lenihan read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE 2022-14 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” 

ARTICLE 1 “GENERAL PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 2 “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION 

23.1-12 “DEFINITIONS,” ADDING THERETO NEW DEFINITIONS “SOCIAL 

JUSTICE” AND “SUSTAINABILITY;” AND “ARTICLE 2 “ADMINISTRATION,” 

DIVISION 3 “PERMITS,” SECTION 23.2-31 “SITE DESIGN QUALITATIVE 

STANDARDS,” PROVIDING FOR STANDARDS FOR BUILDINGS; AND 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve 

Ordinance No. 2022-14 amending Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 

“General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions”, and Article 2 

“Administration”, Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-31 “Site Design Qualitative Standards,” 

providing standards for buildings, adding the words “and equity” to follow “fairness” on line 

62. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

The meeting recessed at 8:03 PM and reconvened at 8:14 PM. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: (2:13:57) 

 

A. (continued from September 20, 2022 meeting) Ordinance No. 19-2022 – First Reading - 

Adopting amendments to Chapter 7 “Beaches, Parks and Recreation” to prohibit smoking 

and vaping in City parks and on the City’s beach (2:14:00) 

 

City Attorney Lenihan read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE 2022-19 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 7 “BEACHES, PARKS AND RECREATION,” 

ARTICLE I “PARKS, RECREATIONAL FACILITIES AND PUBLIC PROPERTY,” 

SECTION 7-9 “REGULATION OF CONDUCT IN PARKS AND RECREATION 

AREAS AND ON PUBLIC PROPERTY” BY CREATING A NEW SUBSECTION (K) 

TO BE ENTITLED “SMOKING AND VAPING” TO PROHIBIT SMOKING AND 

VAPING IN CITY PARKS AND PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT; AND ARTICLE 

VI “MUNICIPAL BEACH AREA AND MUNICIPAL BEACH,” SECTION 7-80 

“ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS APPLYING TO THE MUNICIPAL BEACH AREA,” 

BY CREATING A NEW SUBSECTION (Z) TO BE ENTITLED “SMOKING AND 

VAPING” TO BAN SMOKING AND VAPING ON CITY BEACH AND TO PROVIDE 

FOR ENFORCEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 

CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 



Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, October 6, 2022 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve 

Ordinance No. 19-2022 on first reading and set the second reading and public hearing for 

November 1, 2022, with an amendment for a designated smoking area added to special events 

at city parks. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and Diaz. 

NAYS: Vice Mayor McVoy. 

 

B. (continued from September 20, 2022 meeting) Resolution No. 78-2022 – Establishment of 

a Public Education Fund (2:46:27) 

 

City Attorney Lenihan did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 78-2022 OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC EDUCATION FUND; 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Resolution No. 78-2022 – Establishment of a Public Education Fund. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

C.  (continued from September 20, 2022 meeting) Resolution No. 79-2022 – FY 2022 Budget 

Transfer (2:57:16) 

 

City Attorney Lenihan did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 79-2022, 12th BUDGET AMENDMENT OF THE CITY OF LAKE 

WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, 

MAKING SEPARATE AND SEVERAL BUDGET AMENDMENTS AND 

CORRESPONDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY’S NECESSARY 

OPERATING EXPENSES, THE USES AND EXPENSES OF THE VARIOUS FUNDS 

AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 

OCTOBER 1, 2021 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve 

Resolution No. 79-2022 – FY 2022 Budget Transfer. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

D. Update Status Discussion of CRA Owned Contributing Properties along South L and South 

K Streets (2:57:35) 

 

  



Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, October 6, 2022 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. (reordered to follow the Consent Agenda) Presentation by FAU of the disparity analysis 

and the four alternative redistricting maps for review and discussion  

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: (3:11:55) 

 

A. Report regarding RFP for housing crisis / rent control 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

 

October 12 - Pre-agenda Work Session @ 9 AM 

October 13 - Public Meeting (redistricting) @ 6 PM 

October 15 - Public Meeting (redistricting) @ 10 AM 

October 18 - Regular Meeting @ 6 PM 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (3:49:25) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Malega to adjourn the 

meeting at 9:50 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes approved November 1, 2022.  

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube.  



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION PRE-AGENDA WORK SESSION 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2022 - 9:00 AM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 9:06 AM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:44) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, 

Commissioners Sarah Malega and Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were City Manager Carmen 

Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia, and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne.  Commissioner 

Kimberly Stokes was absent. 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION:  

 

Action: Consensus for Mayor Resch to proceed with investigating mooring fields. (08:06) 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (55:19)  

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:03 AM. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: November 1, 2022 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 84-2022 – granting a License Agreement to FDOT for 1702 Lake Worth Road 

 
SUMMARY: 

As part of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) project number 4400461, temporary 
use and modification of 1702 Lake Worth Road will be necessary.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The scope for FDOT project 4400461 includes pedestrian enhancements as well as a 
reconfiguration of the traffic circle at A Street.  Due to these improvements, access to the City 
owned property on the north-west corner of the traffic circle (1702 Lake Worth Road) will be 
necessary.  By granting this license to FDOT, the City is agreeing to allow sloping, grading, tie 
ins, and harmonization of the project improvements within the right-of-way with the existing 
features located on the 1702 Lake Worth Road property.   

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution 84-2022 granting a license to FDOT for the purpose of 
harmonizing the property with the new roadway improvements.   

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Resolution 84-2022 
FDOT License 



 1 

84-2022 2 

 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 84-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 4 

FLORIDA, GRANTING A LICENSE TO THE STATE OF FLORIDA FOR 5 

TRANSPORTATION PURPOSES RELATED TO IMPROVEMENTS ON 6 

STATE ROAD NO. 802 (LAKE WORTH ROAD); AND PROVIDING AN 7 

EFFECTIVE DATE 8 

 9 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation proposes to 10 

construct or improve State Road No. 802, Item/Segment No. 4400461, Section 93180-11 

2508, in Palm Beach County, Florida: and 12 

 13 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that certain lands now owned by the City of Lake Worth 14 

Beach, Florida, be used temporarily by the State of Florida for the use and benefit of the 15 

State of Florida Department of Transportation: and 16 

 17 

WHEREAS, said use is in the best interest of the City: and 18 

 19 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation has made 20 

application to said City to execute and deliver to the State of Florida Department of 21 

Transportation a license, in favor of the State of Florida, for the purpose of sloping, 22 

grading, tying in, harmonizing and reconnecting existing features with highway 23 

improvements, and said request having been duly considered. 24 

 25 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 26 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 27 

 28 

SECTION 1: The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, deems 29 

that the application of the State of Florida Department of Transportation for a license is 30 

for transportation purposes which are in the public or community interest and for public 31 

welfare; that a license, in favor of the State of Florida, in Lake Worth Beach, Florida, 32 

should be drawn and executed by this City Commission.   33 

 34 

SECTION 2: Upon execution of the resolution, one copy shall be forwarded to the 35 

Public Works Director and a certified copy of this Resolution be forwarded forthwith to the 36 

State of Florida Department of Transportation at 3400 W. Commercial Boulevard, Fort 37 

Lauderdale, Florida 33309. The fully executed original shall be maintained by the City 38 

Clerk as a public record of the City. 39 

 40 

SECTION 3: This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 41 

 42 

The passage of this Resolution was moved by ________________, seconded by 43 



Pg. 2, Reso. 84-2022 

________________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 44 

 45 

Mayor Betty Resch  46 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 47 

Commissioner Sarah Malega 48 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 49 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 50 

 51 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the ___ 52 

day of _________, 2022. 53 

 54 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 55 

 56 

 57 

By: __________________________ 58 

Betty Resch, Mayor 59 

ATTEST: 60 

 61 

 62 

_________________________  63 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 64 

 65 



Page 1 of 2 

 

09-LA.13-07/18 

 

This instrument prepared under the direction of: 

Elizabeth S. Quintana, Esq. __________ 

District Four Assistant General Counsel 

Legal Description prepared by: 

Amelia Rodriguez-Alers, P.S.M. (03/04/2022) Parcel No.  900.1 

Document prepared by:    Item/Segment No. 4400461 

Cochise Wadley (03/18/2022)    Section:  93180-2508 

Florida Department of Transportation   Managing District: 04 

Right of Way Production Services   S.R. No.  802 (Lake Worth Road) 

3400 W. Commercial Boulevard   County:   Palm Beach 

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309 

 

 

LICENSE 
 

THIS LICENSE Made this __________ day of __________________, 20_____, between the 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH a/k/a THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH, a municipality of the State 

of Florida, whose address is: 7 N. Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Fl 33460-3725, herein called licensor 

and the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, herein called Licensee. 

 

In consideration of the benefits accruing unto the licensor, the parties agree as follows: 

 

Licensor hereby grants to Licensee a license to occupy and use, subject to all of the terms and conditions 

hereof, the following described premises:        

 

A portion of Lot 1, Block 35, SAWYER’S SUBDIVISION, according to the Plat thereof, as recorded in 

Plat Book 5, Page 12 of the Public Records of Palm Beach County, Florida, lying in Section 21, Township 

44 South, Range 43 East; said portion lying westerly of the Existing West Right of Way line of North A 

Street, extending no more than 7.00 feet between Baseline of Survey Stations 4+96.09 and 5+18.14, as 

shown on the Florida Department of Transportation Roadway Plan for Financial Project ID No. 440046-1-

52-01. 

 

The premises may be occupied and used by Licensee solely for sloping, grading, tying in, harmonizing and 

reconnecting existing features of the Licensor’s property with the highway improvements which are to be 

constructed together with incidental purposes related thereto during the period beginning with the date first 

above written and continuing until completion of the transportation project, but not later than the last day 

of September 2027. 

 

The making, execution and delivery of this license by licensor has been induced by no representations, 

statements, warranties, or agreements other than those contained herein. This license embodies the entire 

understanding of the parties and there are no further or other agreements or understandings, written or oral, 

in effect between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said licensor has signed and sealed these presents the day and year 

first above written. 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ________________________   CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk  a municipality of the State of Florida 

       By Its City Commission 

 

 

By: ________________________________ 

 Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

 

(Official Seal) 

 

By: _________________________ 

City Attorney 



 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS, The history and culture of our great nation have been 

significantly influenced by American Indians and indigenous 

peoples; and 

 

WHEREAS, The contributions of American Indians have enhanced the 

 freedom, prosperity, and greatness of America today; and 

 

WHEREAS, Their customs and traditions are respected and celebrated as part 

of a rich legacy throughout the United States; and 

 

WHEREAS, Native American Awareness Week began in 1976 and 

 recognition was expanded by Congress and approved by 

 President Bush in August 1990, designating the month of 

 November as National American Indian Heritage Month. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, BETTY RESCH, Mayor of the City of Lake Worth 

Beach, Florida by virtue of the authority vested in me and on behalf of the City 

Commission, do hereby proclaim: 

 

NOVEMBER 2022 

as 

NATIONAL AMERICAN INDIAN HERITAGE MONTH 

 

 and urge all residents to observe this month with appropriate programs, 

ceremonies, and activities. 

 

IN   WITNESS   WHEREOF, I   have   hereunto   set   my   hand   and   caused   

the Seal   of   the   City   of   Lake   Worth   Beach, Florida, to   be affixed   this   

1st day of November, 2022. 

 
 

__________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Leisure Services 

TITLE: 

Third Amendment to Retail Lease with B. F. Enterprises, Inc., the current tenant 

 
SUMMARY: 

This amendment authorizes B. F. Enterprises, Inc., to extend its lease of units #5 and #6 at the Lake 
Worth Beach Municipal Casino Building. The Current Appropriation for FY23 is $66,552.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

 
On June 5, 2012 the City entered into a retail lease agreement with B.F. Enterprises, Inc., also known 
as the Lake Worth Beach Tee Shirt Company. The lease allowed for B.F. Enterprises to lease units #5 
and #6 at the Lake Worth Beach Casino Building for five (5) years with the option to four (4) additional 
five (5) year renewals. 
 
On November 7, 2017 the City and the tenant entered into the First Amendment to the lease to extend 
the lease for five (5 years). 
 
On August 31, 2020 the City and the tenant entered into a Second Amendment to revise certain terms 
and conditions of the lease as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
The Third Amendment will extend B.F. Enterprise’s lease on units #5 and #6 at the Lake Worth Beach 
Casino Building for an additional five (5) years. 
 
There remain two (2) additional options to renew the Lease for five (5) years each.   

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Third Amendment with B.F. Enterprises, Inc.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Third Amendment Retail Lease 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 

   Current Appropriation $66,552.05 $68,881.38 $71,292.22 $73,787.45 $76,370.01 

   Program Income  0  0  0  0  0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact:  

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department     

Division    

GL Description    

GL Account Number    

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Budget Transfer Impact 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Revenue Source / Expenditure 

Department  Leisure Services 

Division Beach Fund 

GL Description Leased Properties 

GL Account Number 140-0000-362.10-00 

Project Number N/A 

Requested Funds N/A: Revenues 

 





























































































STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Leisure Services 

TITLE: 

Fourth Amendment to Retail Lease with Pura Vida Treats, Inc., the current tenant 

 
SUMMARY: 

This amendment authorizes Pura Vida Treats, Inc., to extend its lease of units #3 and #4 at the Lake 
Worth Beach Municipal Casino Building. The current appropriation for FY23 is $46,972.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On February 2, 2012, the City entered into a retail lease agreement with Maxplan Enterprises Inc., also 
known as Kilwins Chocolates and Ice Cream Lake Worth Beach. The lease allowed for Maxplan 
Enterprises, Inc., to lease units #3 and #4 at the Lake Worth Beach Casino Building for ten (10) years 
with the option of two (2) additional five (5) year renewals. 
 
On August 13, 2020, the City and the tenant entered into a Second Amendment to revise certain terms 
and conditions of the lease as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
On March 2, 2021, the City, Tenant/Assignor and Tenant/Assignee entered into the Second Amendment 
to the lease to assign the lease to Pura Vida Treats, Inc., to continue to operate as Kilwins Chocolates 
and Ice Cream Lake Worth Beach. 
 
On September 20, 2022, the Landlord and Tenant/Assignee entered into the Third Amendment to the 
lease to extend the Lease for up to 60 days. 
 
The Fourth Amendment will extend Pura Vida Treats, Inc., lease on units #3 and #4 at the Lake Worth 
Beach Casino Building for an additional five (5) years.  There will be a 3.5% a year increase per the 
terms of the lease. 
 
There remains one (1) option to renew the Lease for five (5) additional years.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Fourth Amendment with Pura Vida Treats, Inc. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Fourth Amendment Retail Lease 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 

   Current Appropriation $46,972.34 $48,616.37 $50,317.94 $52,079.07 $53,901.84 

Program Income  0  0  0  0  0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows  

 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 

 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0  

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact: 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department     

Division    

GL Description    

GL Account Number    

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Budget Transfer Impact 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Revenue Source/ Expenditure 

Department  Leisure Services 

Division Beach Fund 

GL Description Leased Properties 

GL Account Number 140-0000-362.10-00 

Project Number N/A  

Requested Funds N/A: Revenues  

 































































































STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Leisure Services 

TITLE: 

Fifth Amendment to Retail Lease with RVRA, LLC, the current tenant 

 
SUMMARY: 

This amendment authorizes RVRA, LLC, to extend its lease of units #1 and #2 at the Lake Worth Beach 
Municipal Casino Building.  The current appropriation for FY23 is $65,754.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On February 23, 2012, the City entered into a retail lease agreement with Mamma Mia’s on the Beach, 
Inc. (prior “Tenant/Assignor) to lease units #1 and #2 at the Lake Worth Beach Casino Building for ten 
(10) years with the option to two (2) additional five (5) year renewals. 
 
On May 2, 2017, the Landlord and the Tenant/Assignor entered into the First Amendment to the Retail 
Lease authorizing Vincenzo Lograsso to deliver ownership of the Tenant/Assignor’s corporation to 
Francesco Lograsso. 
 
On May 7, 2019, the Landlord, the Tenant/Assignor and RVRA, LLC entered into the Second Amendment 
to the Retail Lease wherein the Landlord agreed to the assignment of the Lease from the 
Tenant/Assignor to RVRA, LLC, the current Tenant. 
 
On December 1, 2020 the City and the tenant entered into a Third Amendment to revise certain terms 
and conditions of the lease as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
On September 20, 2022, the Landlord and Tenant/Assignee entered into the Fourth Amendment to the 
lease to extend the Lease for up to 60 days. 
 
The Fifth Amendment will extend the RVRA, LLC, lease on units #1 and #2 at the Lake Worth Beach 
Casino Building for an additional five (5) years.  There will be a 3.5% a year increase per the terms of 
the lease. 
 
There remains one (1) option to renew the Lease for five (5) additional years.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Fifth Amendment with RVRA, LLC. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Fifth Amendment Retail Lease 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 

   Current Appropriation $65,754.66 $68,056.07 $70,438.03 $72,903.36 $75,454.98 

   Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0  
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact: 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department     

Division    

GL Description    

GL Account Number    

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Budget Transfer Impact 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Leisure Services 

Division Beach Fund 

GL Description Leased Properties 

GL Account Number 140-0000-362.10-00 

Project Number N/A  

Requested Funds N/A: Revenues 

 



 

1 
 

FIFTH AMENDMENT TO RETAIL LEASE 

 

THIS FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE RETAIL LEASE (the “Amendment”) is made 

between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation (“Landlord”), and 

RVRA, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (the “Tenant”) (collectively, the “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, on February 23, 2012, the Landlord and Mamma Mia’s on the Beach, Inc. 

(prior “Tenant/Assignor”) entered into a Retail Lease agreement for the lease of unit nos. 1 and 2 

on the first floor of the Lake Worth Municipal Casino Building for use by the Tenant as an Italian 

restaurant for on and off premises consumption (the “Lease”); and, 

 

 WHEREAS, on May 2, 2017, the Landlord and the Tenant/Assignor entered into the First 

Amendment to the Retail Lease authorizing Vincenzo Lograsso to deliver ownership of the 

Tenant/Assignor’s corporation to Francesco Lograsso; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on May 7, 2019, the Landlord, the Tenant/Assignor and RVRA, LLC entered 

into the Second Amendment to the Retail Lease wherein the Landlord agreed to the assignment of 

the Lease from the Tenant/Assignor to RVRA, LLC, the current Tenant; and 

 

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020, the Landlord and the Tenant entered into the Third 

Amendment to the Retail Lease wherein the Parties addressed changes to the terms and conditions 

of the Lease due to COVID-19; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, on September 20, 2022, the Landlord and Tenant entered into the Fourth 

Amendment to the lease to extend the Lease for up to 60 days so that the market rate analysis could 

be completed; and 

 

 WHEREAS, when the Lease is referenced hereinafter, it shall be defined to also include 

the First Amendment, Second Amendment, Third Amendment, and Fourth Amendment. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties wish to extend the Lease for a five (5) year renewal term (which 

includes the initial 60 day extension) and to set forth the revised Base Rent for each year of such 

renewal term; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Landlord finds amending the Lease as set forth herein serves a valid 

public purpose. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained 

in the Lease, as previously amended, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of 

which the Parties expressly acknowledge, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

2. City Commission Consideration. This Amendment will be considered by the Landlord’s 

City Commission at a public meeting on ______________________________.  

 



 

2 
 

3. First Renewal Option.  The Lease is hereby extended for an additional five (5) years 

through and including October 1, 2027.  There remains one (1) option to renew the Lease 

for five (5) additional years.   

 

4. Base Rent.  Paragraph 1.15 of the Lease, “Base Rent,” is here by deleted in full and 

amended to read as follows: 

 

1.15 Base Rent (1st renewal).  The following amounts: 

 

Period  Rate P/S/F Annum Monthly Base Rent Period Base Rent 

11th year $49.37   $5,479.56  $65,754.66 

12th year $51.09   $5,671.34  $68,056.07 

13th year $52.88   $5,869.84  $70,438.03 

14th year $54.73   $6,075.28  $72,903.36 

15th year $56.65   $6,287.92  $75,454.98 

 

5. Agreement Unchanged.   Except as specifically amended herein, all other provisions of 

the Lease shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

6. Controlling Documents.   To the extent that there exists a conflict between this 

Amendment and the Lease, the terms and conditions of this Amendment shall prevail. 

Whenever possible, the provisions of such documents shall be construed in such a manner 

as to avoid conflicts between the provisions of the various documents. 

 

7. Entire Agreement.  The Parties agree that the Lease and this Amendment represent the 

entire agreement between the Parties and supersede all other negotiations, representations, 

or agreements, either written or verbal.  

 

8. Counterparts.  Each Party may sign one copy of this Amendment and together, whether 

by signed original or by digitally signed, facsimiled, or e-mailed copy, the signed copies 

shall constitute one, fully executed Amendment. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to the Retail Lease 

to be executed by their duly authorized representatives. 

 

LANDLORD: CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

Witness: 

By:_______________________________ By:__________________________________ 

Print Name:________________________       Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:     Date:_______________________ 

 

________________________________   

Melissa A. Coyne, CMC, City Clerk   

 

 



 

3 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA)  

COUNTY OF PALM BEACH)  

 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of • physical 

presence or • online notarization on this ____ day of ___________________ 2022, by Betty 

Resch, as the Mayor of the City of Lake Worth Beach (Landlord), who is personally known to 

me. 

 

Notary Seal:     ____________________________________ 

                                                                        Notary Public Signature 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                    APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                   SUFFICIENCY: 

 

By: _______________________________        By: ____________________________________ 

       Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                           Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director 

 

    TENANT:   RVRA, LLC 

Witnesses:  

 

By:______________________________ By:__________________________________ 

Print Name:_______________________        

   

By:______________________________  [Corporate Seal, if required] 

Print Name:_______________________ 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA)  

COUNTY OF __________________)  

 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of • physical 

presence or • online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2022, by 

__________________________________________, as the ___________________________of 

RVRA, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, who is personally known to me or who has 

produced _________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he is 

duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the TENANT to the same.   

 

 

Notary Seal:     ____________________________________ 

      Notary Public Signature 







































































































STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:  November 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 19-2022 – Second Reading - Adopting amendments to Chapter 7 “Beaches, 
Parks and Recreation” to prohibit smoking and vaping in City parks and on the City’s beach 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed Ordinance will amend Chapter 7 “Beaches, Parks and Recreation,” Article I 
“Parks, Recreational Facilities and Public Property” and Article VI “Municipal Beach Area and 
Municipal Beach” to prohibit smoking and vaping in city parks and on the beach and to provide 
for enforcement of the same.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 

The State legislature preempted the regulation of smoking to the State under section 386.209, 
Florida Statutes, which prohibited municipalities from regulating smoking.  However, effective 
July 1, 2022, section 386.209 was amended to allow municipalities to restrict smoking and 
vaping within the boundaries of public beaches and public parks owned by such municipalities, 
except that they may not restrict the smoking of unfiltered cigars.  Based upon the documented 
health problems caused by secondhand smoke and aerosol (vaping), the City wishes to adopt 
an ordinance that will prohibit smoking and vaping within its City parks and on its beach.  The 
ordinance also provides for enforcement of these regulations by the Palm Beach County 
Sheriff’s Office through the City’s civil citation process set forth in Chapter 2, Article X of the 
Code. 
 
The commission voted 4-1 to approve the Ordinance on first reading at the October 6 meeting 
with an amendment adding an exemption allowing for a designated smoking area with special 
event permits. 
 

MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove Ordinance No. 19-2022 prohibiting smoking and vaping in city 
parks and on the beach and to provide for enforcement of the same.  

  

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Ordinance No. 19-2022 



2022-19 1 
 2 

 3 
ORDINANCE 2022-19 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 4 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 7 “BEACHES, 5 
PARKS AND RECREATION,” ARTICLE I “PARKS, RECREATIONAL 6 
FACILITIES AND PUBLIC PROPERTY,” SECTION 7-9 “REGULATION 7 

OF CONDUCT IN PARKS AND RECREATION AREAS AND ON PUBLIC 8 
PROPERTY” BY CREATING A NEW SUBSECTION (K) TO BE 9 
ENTITLED “SMOKING AND VAPING” TO PROHIBIT SMOKING AND 10 
VAPING IN CITY PARKS AND PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT; AND 11 
ARTICLE VI “MUNICIPAL BEACH AREA AND MUNICIPAL BEACH,” 12 

SECTION 7-80 “ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS APPLYING TO THE 13 

MUNICIPAL BEACH AREA,” BY CREATING A NEW SUBSECTION (Z) 14 
TO BE ENTITLED “SMOKING AND VAPING” TO BAN SMOKING AND 15 

VAPING ON CITY BEACH AND TO PROVIDE FOR ENFORCEMENT; 16 

AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION 17 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 18 

 19 
 20 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) is a duly constituted 21 

municipality having such home rule power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida 22 
Constitution and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 23 

 24 
WHEREAS, under section 386.209, Florida Statutes, the State legislature 25 

preempted the regulation of smoking to the State which prohibited municipalities and 26 
counties from regulating smoking within local parks and beaches; and  27 

 28 
WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2022, the Florida legislature amended section 29 

386.209, Florida Statutes, to allow municipalities to restrict smoking within the boundaries 30 

of public beaches and public parks that are owned by such municipalities, except that 31 
they may not restrict the smoking of unfiltered cigars; and 32 

 33 
WHEREAS, as noted in the reports cited in the staff analysis for HB 105 (2022) 34 

which amended section 386.209, Florida Statutes (and which are incorporated herein by 35 
reference), secondhand smoke can cause numerous health problems and has been 36 
causally linked to cancer and other fatal diseases; and 37 

 38 
WHEREAS, various articles have reported that electronic smoking devices emit 39 

secondhand aerosol which contain nicotine, ultrafine particles and low levels of toxins 40 
that are known to cause cancer; and 41 

 42 
WHEREAS, further, the Ocean Conservancy, Inc. has also reported that cigarette 43 

butts are the number one littered item on beaches and that cigarette butts are also a 44 

major part of plastic pollution because they are made of tightly packed plastic fibers that 45 
erode into smaller bits, which accumulate in fish and other organisms and not only 46 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-19 

 

impacts animal health and reproductivity, but also human health when people consume 47 
sick fish; and  48 

 49 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that the harmful impact of cigarette butts, 50 

secondhand smoke and secondhand aerosol at the City’s beaches and parks are 51 
detrimental to beach and park users and should be banned to the greatest extend allowed 52 
by law; and 53 

 54 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 55 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 56 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 57 

 58 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 59 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 60 
City, its residents and visitors. 61 

 62 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 63 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 64 

 65 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are incorporated into this 66 

Ordinance as true and correct findings of the City Commission, without limitation, the 67 

reports cited in the staff analysis for Florida HB 105 (2022) which amended section 68 
386.209, Florida Statutes.  69 

 70 
Section 2: Chapter 7 “Beaches, Parks and Recreation,” Article I “Parks, 71 

Recreational Facilities and Public Property,” Section 7-9 “Regulation of conduct in parks 72 
and recreation areas and on public property” is hereby amended by adding thereto a new 73 

subsection (k) to read as follows: 74 
  75 
Sec. 7-9. – Regulation of conduct in parks and recreation areas and on public 76 

property. 77 
In addition to the regulations contained in sections 7-1 through 7-7 of this article, the 78 

following regulations shall apply to all parks and recreation facilities and public property, 79 
unless otherwise noted.  Conduct relating specifically to the municipal beach area shall 80 
be proscribed by chapter 7, article VI of this Code. 81 
 82 
* * * 83 
 (k) Smoking and vaping.  84 

 85 
(1) Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following terms shall have 86 

the meanings given. Words not otherwise defined shall have the meaning 87 
set forth in Part II, Chapter 386, Florida Statutes (the Florida Clean Air Act), 88 
or shall be construed to mean the common and ordinary meaning. 89 

“Smoking” means inhaling, exhaling, burning, carrying, or possessing any 90 
lighted tobacco product, including cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, and any 91 
other lighted tobacco product. However, “unfiltered cigars” shall be exempt 92 
from this definition of smoking. 93 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-19 

“Vape” or “vaping” means to inhale or exhale vapor produced by a vapor-94 

generating electronic device or to possess a vapor-generating electronic 95 

device while that device is actively employing an electronic, a chemical, or 96 
a mechanical means designed to produce vapor or aerosol from a nicotine 97 
product or any other substance. The term does not include the mere 98 
possession of a vapor-generating electronic device. 99 

(2) Prohibition.  Except as otherwise set forth herein, a person is prohibited from 100 

smoking and/or vaping in a park located within the city. 101 

(3) Special event exception.   Smoking and vaping in a designated smoking area 102 

may be authorized in a park pursuant to a special event permit issued by the 103 
city.  The location of the designated smoking area shall be pre-approved by the 104 
city.  The permittee shall remove all cigarettes and cigarette butts, filters, 105 

papers, and other associated debris from the event premises or be subject to 106 
a fine established in the reasonable discretion of the city or as otherwise set 107 

forth in the special permit conditions. 108 

(4) Enforcement. The city’s law enforcement agency is hereby authorized to 109 

enforce this subsection through the issuance of a city civil citation as set forth 110 
in Chapter 2, Article X of this Code.   111 

Section 3: Chapter 7 “Beaches, Parks and Recreation,” Article VI “Municipal 112 
Beach Area and Municipal Beach,” Section 7-80 “Additional regulations applying to the 113 
municipal beach area” is hereby amended by adding thereto a new subsection (z) to read 114 

as follows: 115 
 116 

Sec. 7-80. – Additional regulations applying to the municipal beach area. 117 
  Purpose.  Citizens and visitors should be afforded a safe, clean environment in which 118 

recreational opportunities can be maximized.  Due to the wide variety of patron needs 119 
and use of city property, it is necessary to establish the following regulations.  These 120 

regulations are in addition to regulations that are contained in other sections of the Code 121 
of Ordinances or otherwise posted in particular parks, recreational facilities or municipal 122 
beaches. 123 

 124 
* * * 125 
 (z) Smoking and vaping.  126 

 127 
(1) Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following terms shall have the 128 

meanings given. Words not otherwise defined shall have the meaning set forth in 129 
Part II, Chapter 386, Florida Statutes (the Florida Clean Air Act), or shall be 130 
construed to mean the common and ordinary meaning. 131 

“Smoking” means inhaling, exhaling, burning, carrying, or possessing any 132 
lighted tobacco product, including cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, and any 133 
other lighted tobacco product. However, “unfiltered cigars” shall be exempt 134 
from this definition of smoking. 135 

“Vape” or “vaping” means to inhale or exhale vapor produced by a vapor-136 

generating electronic device or to possess a vapor-generating electronic 137 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-19 

 

device while that device is actively employing an electronic, a chemical, or 138 
a mechanical means designed to produce vapor or aerosol from a nicotine 139 

product or any other substance. The term does not include the mere 140 
possession of a vapor-generating electronic device. 141 

(2) Prohibition.  A person is prohibited from smoking and/or vaping on the municipal 142 

beach located within the city.  This prohibition shall only apply to the beach and 143 
not the entire municipal beach area as defined in this Code. 144 

(3) Enforcement. The city’s law enforcement agency is hereby authorized to enforce 145 

this subsection through the issuance of a city civil citation as set forth in Chapter 146 
2, Article X of this Code.  147 

 148 

Section 4: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 149 
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 150 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 151 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 152 
portions thereof.  153 

 154 
Section 5:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 155 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 156 
 157 
Section 6: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 158 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 159 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 160 

any other appropriate word. 161 
 162 

Section 7: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 163 
passage. 164 

 165 
The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner 166 

Malega, seconded by Commissioner Stokes, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was 167 

as follows: 168 
 169 

Mayor Betty Resch AYE 170 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy NAY 171 
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE 172 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 173 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 174 
 175 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 176 

6th day of October, 2022. 177 
 178 

 179 
The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 180 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 181 
the vote was as follows: 182 



Pg.5, Ord. 2022-19 

 183 
Mayor Betty Resch  184 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  185 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  186 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  187 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  188 
 189 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 190 
_____________________, 2022. 191 

 192 
 193 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 194 

 195 

 196 
By: __________________________ 197 

Betty Resch, Mayor 198 

 199 
ATTEST: 200 

 201 
 202 
____________________________ 203 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 204 
 205 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: October 18, 2022 DEPARTMENT: City Attorney (and PBSO) 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-22 – Second Reading - Amending Section 15-24.1 “Definitions” and 
Section 15-24.5 “Enforcement,” to modify the enforcement process for a noise control violation 
and for other purposes 

 
SUMMARY: 

An ordinance amending the City’s Noise Ordinance to allow for enforcement of violations by the 
Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office through the issuance of City civil citations.  The City will also 
have alternative enforcement options including the issuance of a notice to appear, injunctive 
relief and any other available legal or equitable remedy. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City has adopted noise control regulations in Chapter 15 “Offenses-Miscellaneous,” Article 
I “In General,” Section 15-24 “Noise control.”  The definitions section of the ordinance is being 
amended to include a definition of “person” so that it includes businesses in addition to 
individuals.  Currently, a noise violation may only be enforced through the issuance of a notice 
to appear which is handled through the county court system.  The amendments to the ordinance 
will authorize the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office to issue a City civil citation that is 
processed through the City’s special magistrate.  Violations may also be enforced through the 
issuance of a notice to appeal and any other available alternative legal or equitable remedy.  

The commission unanimously approved the Ordinance on first reading at the October 18th 
meeting with the additional language (highlighted on the ordinance) defining that the officers 
must be informed or observe the infraction and highlighting the reasonable time frame of 10 
minutes.   

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-22 on first reading and setting the second 
reading and public hearing for November 1, 2022. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Ordinance 2022-22 



2022-22 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-22 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF 3 

THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 15, 4 
“OFFENSES--MISCELLANEOUS,” ARTICLE I, “IN GENERAL,” BY 5 
AMENDING SECTION 15-24.1 “DEFINITIONS” AND SECTION 15-24.5, 6 
“ENFORCEMENT,” WHICH SHALL MODIFY THE ENFORCEMENT PROCESS 7 
FOR A NOISE CONTROL VIOLATION AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES; 8 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION, AND AN 9 
EFFECTIVE DATE  10 

 11 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) is a duly constituted 12 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida 13 

Constitution and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 14 
 15 

WHEREAS, noise has been a topic of concern within the City for a significant 16 
period of time, and has recently been the subject of discussion regarding the 17 
modification of enforcement and legislative solutions; and 18 

 19 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the City's Noise Control Ordinance is to obtain 20 
compliance of unnecessary and excessive noise violations before imposing fines and 21 
other penalties; and 22 

 23 
WHEREAS, in order to strike a balance between the concerns of the business 24 

community and residents, a warning and violation system has been developed which 25 
takes into account the diverse character of the City; and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, the provisions of this Ordinance are intended to preserve the quality 28 

of life in all City neighborhoods, to allow businesses to provide an inviting environment 29 
for their patrons, and to strike the proper balance in the enforcement of noise violations; 30 
and 31 

 32 
WHEREAS, the amendments to the Ordinance seek to streamline the enforcement 33 

provision through the option for law enforcement to issue a City civil citation and to 34 
provide alternatives means of enforcement; and 35 

 36 
WHEREAS, the City’s civil citation procedure, as set forth in Chapter 2, Article 10 37 

of the Code of Ordinances, is also being amended to provide for a graduated fine for 38 
subsequent noise violations at the same property; and 39 

 40 
WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the recommended amendments 41 

and has determined that they serve a valid public purpose and are in the best interest 42 
of the public health, safety, and general welfare of the City and its residents. 43 

 44 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 45 
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA that: 46 
 47 

Section 1.  Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and ratified. 48 
 49 
Section 2. Chapter 15 OFFENSES--MISCELLANEOUS, Article I, “IN GENERAL,” Section 50 
15-24.1 shall be amended to read as follows: 51 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-22 

 

Sec. 15-24.1. – Definitions. 1 

 2 
 The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall 3 
have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 4 
clearly indicates a different meaning: 5 

* * * 6 
 Person means individuals, firms, associations, joint ventures, partnerships, 7 

estates, trusts, business trusts, syndicates, fiduciaries, corporations, and all 8 
other business entities, groups or combinations. 9 

Section 3. Chapter 15 OFFENSES--MISCELLANEOUS, Article I, “IN 10 

GENERAL,” Section 15-24.5 shall be amended to read as follows: 11 
 12 
Sec. 15-24.5. – Enforcement. 13 

 14 
(a) Whenever a law enforcement officer is notified of and observes a violation of the 15 

ordinance from which this section derives or, whenever a law enforcement officer 16 

observes, the officer shall issue a warning in writing if there is a violation to the 17 
person(s)individual, or individuals, responsible for the violation. The warning shall 18 

advise the person(s)individual or individuals of the specific violation of the noise control 19 
ordinance and shall specify a reasonable time to reduce the sound level to an 20 
appropriate level as set forth within the noise control ordinance.  Absent special 21 

circumstances, a reasonable time shall not exceed ten (10) minutes. 22 
 23 

(b) If the violation is not eliminated within a reasonable time (ten (10) minutes) after the 24 

warning has been issued, or if the violation recurs within ninety (90) days of the 25 

issuance of the warning, the individual or individuals so warned and not complying, 26 
shall be charged with a violation of the noise control ordinance and shall be subject to 27 
enforcement, prosecution and punishment as set forth herein. 28 

 29 
(c) Each re-measurement, after warning, which exceeds the maximum permissible sound 30 

levels established by the noise control ordinance, shall constitute a separate violation. 31 
 32 

(d) The city’s law enforcement agency is hereby authorized to enforce this subsection 33 
through the issuance of a city civil citation as set forth in Chapter 2, Article X of this 34 

Code.  Law enforcement may, in the alternative, issue a notice to appear A violation of 35 
the noise control ordinance is a criminal offense, for which violators may be subject to 36 
a fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500.00) or imprisonment for a term not 37 

exceeding sixty (60) days or by both such fine and imprisonment. The city may also 38 
choose to pursue injunctive relief and/or any other remedy available at law or in equity. 39 
 40 

Section 4.  Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 41 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 42 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 43 
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 44 
portions thereof. 45 
 46 
Section 5.  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 47 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 48 
 49 



Pg. 3, Ord. 2022-22 

 

Section 6.  Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of the City 1 

Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to accomplish 2 
such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or any other 3 
appropriate word. 4 
 5 

Section 7.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect ten days after its adoption. 6 
 7 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner 8 

Malega, seconded by Commissioner Diaz, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as 9 

follows: 10 

 11 

Mayor Betty Resch AYE 12 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 13 

Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE 14 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 15 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 16 

 17 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 18 

18th day of October, 2022. 19 

 20 

 21 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 22 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 23 

the vote was as follows: 24 

 25 

Mayor Betty Resch  26 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  27 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  28 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  29 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  30 

 31 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 32 

_____________________, 2022. 33 

 34 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 35 

 36 

 37 
By: ____________________________ 38 

Betty Resch, Mayor 39 
ATTEST: 40 

 41 

 42 
________________________ 43 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 44 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: City Attorney and  
Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-23 – Second Reading - Amending Chapter 2 “Administration,” Article X 
“Supplemental Code Compliance Procedures,” Section 2-86 “Code Citation Procedures; 
Appeals,” Section 2-87 “Civil Penalties,” and Section 2-88 “Classification of Infractions” 

 
SUMMARY: 

An ordinance amending the City’s Civil Citation process to streamline the contesting of a citation 
and to address penalties for the City’s new ordinance prohibiting smoking and vaping at City 
parks and the beach and to address graduated penalties for repeat noise ordinance violations. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City has adopted supplemental code enforcement procedures in Chapter 2 “Administration,” 
Article X “Supplemental Code Enforcement Procedures.”  Currently, the civil citation form 
includes the fine and the date of the scheduled special magistrate hearing if the violator wishes 
to contest the citation.  The City wishes to amend the process to require a violator to make a 
written request for a hearing if he or she wishes to contest the violation.  This will allow the City 
to better manage special magistrate agendas and hearings.  Further, the City is amending its 
noise ordinance to allow for the issuance of City civil citations for noise violations.  The civil 
citation penalties provision requires amending to include graduated penalties for noise 
ordinance violations and to also include violations of the City’s recently adopted ordinance that 
prohibits smoking and vaping in City parks and beach. 

The Ordinance was approved unanimously at the October 18 City Commission meeting with an 
amendment adding “and location” to 2-86 (d) (3). 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-23, amending Chapter 2 “Administration,” 
Article X “Supplemental Code Compliance Procedures,” Section 2-86 “Code Citation 
Procedures; Appeals,” Section 2-87 “Civil Penalties,” and Section 2-88 “Classification of 
Infractions”. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Ordinance 2022-23 



2022-23 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2022-23 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 2 4 
“ADMINISTRATION,” ARTICLE X “SUPPLEMENTAL CODE 5 
COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES,” SECTION 2-86 “CODE CITATION 6 
PROCEDURES; APPEALS,” SECTION 2-87 “CIVIL PENALTIES,” AND 7 
SECTION 2-88 “CLASSIFICATION OF INFRACTIONS,” PROVIDING 8 

FOR CONSISTENCY WITH CHANGES IN CODES TO BE ENFORCED 9 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 10 
CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 11 

 12 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 13 

of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 14 
“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 15 

municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 16 
may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 17 
and  18 

 19 

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 20 
body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 21 

subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 22 
by law; and  23 

 24 

WHEREAS, the City has adopted supplemental code enforcement procedures in 25 
Chapter 2 “Administration”, Article X “Supplemental Code Enforcement Procedures”; and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, Ch. 162, Florida Statutes, and Florida case law permit a municipality 28 

to enforce its codes by alternative procedures as long as due process is provided; and 29 
 30 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to streamline its civil citation process to provide for 31 

the payment of such citation or, in the alternative, to request a hearing to challenge such 32 
citation; to include additional penalties; and to address additional violations of the Code, 33 

including but not limited to graduated penalties for repeat noise violations and violations 34 
involving conduct in parks, recreation areas and at the municipal beach (e.g., smoking 35 
and vaping violations); and 36 

 37 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 38 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 39 

City, its residents and visitors. 40 

 41 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 42 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 43 
 44 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 45 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.  46 
 47 
Section 2: Chapter 2 “Administration,” Article X “Supplemental Code 48 

Compliance Procedures,” Section 2-86 “Code citation procedures; appeals” is hereby 49 
amended to read as follows: 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-23 

 

Sec. 2-86. - Code citation procedures; appeals. 51 

(a) As used in this article, "code officer" means any designated employee or 52 
agent of the city whose duty it is to enforce the codes and ordinances enacted by the city. 53 

 54 
(b) The city may designate certain of its employees or agents as code officers. The 55 

training and qualifications of the employees or agents for such designation shall be 56 
determined by the city. Employees or agents who may be designated as code officers 57 
may include, but are not limited to, code officers, law enforcement officers, or fire safety 58 
inspectors. Designation as a code officer does not provide the code officer with the power 59 
of arrest or subject the code officer to the provisions of F.S. §§ 943.085 through 943.255. 60 

 61 
(c) A code officer is authorized to issue a citation to a person when, based upon 62 

personal investigation, the officer has reasonable cause to believe that the person has 63 

committed a civil infraction in violation of a duly enacted code or ordinance for which a 64 
fine has been set under this article. 65 

 66 

(d) A citation issued pursuant to this section shall contain: 67 
(1) The date and time of issuance. 68 

(2) The name and address of the person (as defined in Section 1-2 of this Code) 69 
to whom the citation is issued. 70 

(3) The date, time, and location where the civil infraction was committed. 71 

(4) The facts constituting reasonable cause. 72 
(5) The number or section of the code or ordinance violated. 73 
(6) The name and authority of the code officer. 74 

(7) The procedure for the person to follow in order to pay the civil penalty or to 75 

contest the citation. 76 
(8) The applicable civil penalty if the person elects to contest the citation. 77 
(9) The applicable civil penalty if the person elects not to contest the citation. 78 

(10) A conspicuous statement that if the person fails to pay the civil penalty or 79 
contest the citation within the time allowed, or if the person contests the 80 

citation and fails to appear before the special magistrate to contest the 81 
citation, he or she shall be deemed to have waived his or her right to contest 82 
the citation and that, in such case, an order may be entered against the 83 
person for an amount up to the maximum civil penalty. 84 

(11) The date the property must be brought into compliance. 85 
(12) The hearing date, time, and location. 86 

 87 

(e) A respondent may avoid an appearance before the special magistrate by timely 88 
complying with the code section cited, requesting and passing an inspection, and electing 89 
to pay a fine and administrative costs as provided on the issued citation. However, the 90 
respondent may otherwise elect to contest the violation cited and appear before the 91 

special magistrate to contest the violation cited, and at that time must bring any witnesses 92 
or evidence to be presented at the special magistrate hearing. If the respondent wishes 93 
to contest the violation, he or she shall deliver a written request for a hearing to the code 94 
enforcement clerk within the time given on the citation. The request shall include the 95 
respondent’s name, citation number, code section/ordinance number that was violated, 96 
date of issuance of the citation, and the respondent’s current telephone number and 97 
mailing address.  The city will mail the notice of hearing by regular mail to the mailing 98 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-23 
 

address provided.  If a fine or costs, or both, is not paid in accordance with the citation, if 99 

the respondent fails to contest the citation within the time afforded by the citation, or if the 100 
respondent fails to appear at the special magistrate hearing, the respondent shall have 101 
waived all rights to a hearing. Thereafter, an order may be entered by the special 102 
magistrate against the respondent in an amount up to the maximum permitted by law. If 103 
the respondent fails to timely comply with the code section cited and the special 104 

magistrate determines that the violation exists, the respondent may be subject to daily 105 
fines as determined by the special magistrate. Further, if the fine and costs are not timely 106 
paid prior to the hearing and the special magistrate determines a violation occurred, the 107 
respondent will be subject to additional administrative costs and fees. Once a find fine is 108 
paid, or if unpaid, after the date set for payment in the code citation, it is deemed to be 109 

conclusive proof of the violation for the purpose of establishing a later repeat violation. 110 
 111 

(f) The special magistrate, after a hearing on the citation, shall make a 112 
determination whether or not a violation of the code has been committed. The hearing 113 
shall be conducted in accordance with section 2-67 of this chapter. If a violation is found 114 
to have occurred, the special magistrate may enter an order requiring compliance and the 115 
payment of fines and administrative costs in accordance with subsection 2-67(d) of this 116 

chapter. In the alternative, the city may forego the pursuit of a daily fine and request an 117 
order be immediately entered assessing the citation fine and administrative costs. 118 

 119 
(g) A certified order assessing fines and/or costs may be recorded as a lien against 120 

the subject property as set forth in subsection 2-69(d) of this chapter or as otherwise 121 

provided by law. 122 
 123 

(h) Appeals. An aggrieved party, including the local governing body, may appeal a 124 
final administrative order of a special magistrate to the circuit court. Such an appeal shall 125 

not be a hearing de novo but shall be limited to appellate review of the record created 126 
before the special magistrate. An appeal shall be filed with thirty (30) days of the execution 127 

of the order to be appealed. The city attorney or designee is hereby authorized to defend 128 
such appeals on behalf of the city and/or special magistrate. 129 
 130 

Section 3: Chapter 2 “Administration,” Article X “Supplemental Code 131 
Compliance Procedures,” Section 2-87 “Civil penalties” is hereby amended to read as 132 
follows: 133 

 134 
Sec. 2-87. - Civil penalties. 135 

(a) The maximum civil penalty for a civil infraction cited under this article shall be 136 

five hundred dollars ($500.00). A civil penalty may also be referred to as a citation fine. 137 
The fee set for a reinspection under this section shall be set by resolution of the city 138 
commission. 139 
 140 

(b) If the person who has committed a civil infraction does not contest the citation 141 
and pays the penalty and complies the property in accordance with the citation, the civil 142 
penalty shall be as follows: 143 

(1) For a Class I infraction, fifty dollars ($50.00) plus a reinspection fee, if 144 
required. 145 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTVICOCO_S2-67COHE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTVICOCO_S2-67COHE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTVICOCO_S2-69ADFILI


Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-23 

 

(2) For a Class II infraction, seventy-five dollars ($75.00) plus a reinspection 146 

fee, if required. 147 
(3) For a Class III infraction, one hundred twenty-five dollars ($125.00) plus a 148 

reinspection fee, if required. 149 
(4) For a Class IV infraction, two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) plus a 150 

reinspection fee, if required. 151 
(5) For a Class V infraction, five hundred dollars ($500.00) plus a reinspection 152 

fee, if required. 153 
 154 

Section 4: Chapter 2 “Administration,” Article X “Supplemental Code 155 

Compliance Procedures,” Section 2-88 “Classification of infractions” is hereby amended 156 
to read as follows: 157 
 158 

Sec. 2-88. - Classification of infractions. 159 
 (a) Class I. 160 

(1) Violations of the building code of the city, as adopted in section 9-2 of the 161 

Code of Ordinances, not specifically enumerated in this section. 162 
(2) Violations involving recreational vehicles or boats. 163 

(3) Obstruction of public right-of-way. 164 
(4) Violations involving conduct in parks and recreation areas, municipal beach 165 

areas, and on public property, as adopted in Chapter 7 of the Code of 166 

Ordinances, not specifically enumerated in this section. 167 
 168 
(b) Class II. 169 

(1) Violations of the Property Maintenance Code, as adopted in section 2-170 

75.6 of the Code of Ordinances, not specifically enumerated in this section. 171 
(2) Violations involving solid waste, refuse, garbage, rubbish or trash. 172 
(3) Violations involving fences, walls or hedges. 173 

(4) Violations of the sign code, as adopted in Chapter 23, Article XXVIII section 174 
23.5-1, of the Code of Ordinances, not specifically enumerated in this 175 

section. 176 
(5) Abandoned property on private property. 177 
(6) Violations involving landscaping. 178 

 179 
(c) Class III. 180 

(1) Performing work without a required permit. 181 
(2) Violations of the Code of Ordinances not specifically enumerated in this 182 

section. 183 
(3) Violations of the zoning ordinance, as adopted in Chapter 23 of the Code of 184 

Ordinances, not specifically enumerated in this section. 185 
(4) Violations of Chapter 14 of the Code of Ordinances (use and occupancy 186 

certificates, business tax receipts, and business regulations). 187 
(5) Prohibited or unsafe signs. 188 
(6) Violations involving a required visibility triangle. 189 

 190 
(d) Class IV. 191 

(1) Violations of "cease and desist" or "stop work" orders. 192 
(2) Repeat violations. 193 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH9BUSTRE_ARTIINGE_S9-2BUCOAD
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTVIIABNU_S2-75.6PRMACOAD
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH2AD_ARTVIIABNU_S2-75.6PRMACOAD
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH14BUTAREBURE


Pg.5, Ord. 2022-23 
 

(3) Violations involving noise, as adopted in section 15-24 of the Code of 194 

Ordinances, not specifically enumerated in this section. 195 
 196 

(e) Class V. 197 
(1) Repeat violations involving noise, as adopted in section 15-24 of the Code 198 

of Ordinances, not specifically enumerated in this section. 199 

 200 
Section 5: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 201 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 202 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 203 
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 204 

portions thereof.  205 
 206 

Section 6:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 207 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 208 

 209 
Section 7: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 210 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 211 

accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 212 
any other appropriate word. 213 

 214 
Section 8: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 215 

passage. 216 

 217 
The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner 218 

Malega, seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as 219 
follows: 220 

 221 
Mayor Betty Resch AYE 222 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 223 
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE 224 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 225 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 226 
 227 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 228 

18th day of October, 2022. 229 
 230 

 231 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 232 
_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 233 
the vote was as follows: 234 

 235 

Mayor Betty Resch  236 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  237 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  238 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  239 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  240 
 241 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2022-23 

 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 242 

_____________________, 2022. 243 
 244 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 245 
 246 

 247 
By: __________________________ 248 

Betty Resch, Mayor 249 
 250 
ATTEST: 251 

 252 
 253 
____________________________ 254 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 255 
 256 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:  November 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  City Manager 

TITLE: 

Discussion of proposed redistricting maps and public input 

 
SUMMARY: 

Pursuant to the City’s Professional Services Agreement with FAU, representatives from The 
John Scott Dailey Florida Institute of Government at Florida Atlantic University (the “Institute”) 
presented the analysis of the City’s existing election districts and discussed with the City 
Commission the details of such analysis, advising that redistricting was strongly recommended.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 
Every ten years, after a census, updated population data often results in election districts with 
unequal populations, which requires the redrawing of districts to maintain compliance with the 
United States Constitution and the Voting Rights Act.  The City of Lake Worth Beach has never 
done redistricting since its incorporation in 1913.  Generally, redistricting redefines election 
districts based on changes in the population.  The Equal Protection Clause of the United States 
Constitution guarantees the right of “one person, one vote” to municipal residents, such that a 
municipality must redraw its election districts periodically to maintain equal population.   
 
The City Commission entered into an Agreement with FAU to analyze the City’s 2020 Census 
data and population projections and the City’s existing election districts.  At the September 12, 
2022 work session, James Gammack-Clark, Senior Instructor in the Geosciences Department 
at FAU, presented FAU’s report on the population analysis, recommending that redistricting 
be undertaken due to the imbalance in the population of the four districts.  The City 
Commission gave consensus to continue with the process by creating potential maps of the 
new districts for discussion. Four possible map options were presented at the October 6, 2022 
commission meeting as well as at be two public meetings, on October 13 and October 15. 
 
The next step is for the Commission to vote on which map options to proceed with and how 
many other map options to be created for consideration.  Those options will be presented at 
the November 15 Commission meeting. 

 
MOTION: 
 
Move to accept map option(s) xxx and proceed to a final map option presentation. 
Move to consider xxx other map options for the final map presentation. 



 

  

John Scott Dailey Florida Institute of Government 

Florida Atlantic University 

 

Steven Bourassa, Ph.D. 
Professor and Chair, Department of Urban and Regional Planning 

 

James Gammack-Clark, M.A., Ph.D. candidate (ABD) 

Senior Instructor, Department of Geosciences 
 

Ronald R. Schultz, Ph.D. 
Professor Emeritus, Department of Geosciences 

 

Michael Stamm Jr. MURP 
Adjunct Faculty, Department of Urban and Regional Planning 

 

Consultant Report: District Analysis for the 
City of Lake Worth Beach 

September 7, 2022 



 

Page 1 of 9 

Introduction 

The City of Lake Worth Beach contracted with Florida Atlantic University (FAU) to conduct an analysis of 

their City Commission election districts. The contract outlines a two-part process: Part A, a population 

analysis of the current election districts and recommendation for redistricting and Part B, if necessary, the 

creation of redistricting options for the City.  

This report transmits a general analysis of the 2020 U.S. Census apportionment dataset, adjusted for 

future growth to the year 2024, as well as a population analysis of the existing City Commission election 

districts for the City. The report then provides a recommendation as to whether the City should conduct 

a full redistricting analysis. 

The districting requirements in the City Charter are unique, as the Charter defines the specific district 

boundaries. The consulting team was tasked by the City to prepare an analysis of population balance 

among the districts that accounts for the 2020 U.S. Census population count to determine if the districts 

have fallen out of alignment.  

The 2020 Census 

There are two primary differences that make the 2020 U.S. Census stand out from those that preceded it: 

a significant delay in its release due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and the implementation of a new 

‘differential privacy’ policy. We will briefly address both of these here for the sake of posterity and context.  

The decennial census aims to capture a snapshot in time of the population of the United States of America. 

Understanding that the population is constantly changing, with births, deaths, and migration patterns 

constantly adjusting the fabric of the American people, Census Day represents a single moment in time 

for which the U.S. population is enumerated with the greatest precision possible. This day is always 

April 1st. By this date, every household in America received an invitation to participate in the 2020 census, 

with three options to respond: online, by mail, or by phone. 2020 represented the first census to include 

an online response option. Subsequent to this day is a period of time in which the U.S. Census Bureau 

follows up with non-responders and begins a quality control process. Traditionally, the Census Bureau 

would deliver an apportionment count to the U.S. President on December 31st, followed by a distribution 

of redistricting data to the states exactly one year to the day after Census Day: in this case, April 1, 2021. 



 

Page 2 of 9 

However, due to complications caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Census Bureau sought statutory 

relief from Congress that would allow for apportionment counts to be delivered to the President by 

April 30, 2021, and redistricting data to be delivered to the states no later than September 30, 2021. 

Additionally, the Census Bureau compressed the typical three-month nonresponse follow up enumeration 

period to two and half months. Ultimately, redistricting data were released in a ‘legacy format’ on 

August 12, 2021. This delay inevitably and unavoidably complicated redistricting efforts for every electoral 

district in the nation. It also meant that the amount of error in the data, inherent to every census where 

100% accuracy is impossible, would likely be greater in the 2020 census. The Census Bureau has since 

confirmed that the rate of missing information was higher in the 2020 census than in the 2010 census. 

However, they have also stated that this rate was lower than they initially feared. 

The 2020 redistricting data are the first to employ ‘differential privacy protection’. This represents the 

Census Bureau’s introduction of ‘noise’ into the data at the more local geographic scale (Blocks and Block 

Groups) with the intent to strike a balance between data protection and precision. The effect is that while 

the enumeration counts can be trusted at the Census Tract level, we must anticipate a certain degree of 

‘fuzziness’ at the Block level. Specifically, while the aggregate count of population for a Census Tract will 

be accurate, a certain proportion of people/housing units will have been deliberately misallocated by the 

Census Bureau at the Block level. While this may not be problematic in the realignment of Congressional 

Districts, for example, it certainly represents a challenge for Municipal Districts, for which the geographic 

precision of Census Blocks is highly desirable. 

Taken together, therefore, the complications related to the COVID-19 pandemic and the implementation 

of ‘differential privacy’ introduce a certain amount of additional uncertainty to the primary source of data 

for this analysis (2020 Census Redistricting Data (PL 94-171)) that is unprecedented. Nevertheless, these 

data remain the standard upon which municipal redistricting efforts shall be based across the nation. 

Lake Worth Beach City Charter 

The Charter does not provide procedural language as it pertains to redistricting or evaluation of election 

district population.  

Article II (Territorial Boundaries: Election Precincts) Sec.  2 – Election Districts: 

  



 

Page 3 of 9 

The City of Lake Worth is hereby divided into four (4) election districts, as follows:  

District 1. All that territory lying west of Dixie Highway and south of Lake Avenue.  

District 2. All that territory lying west of Dixie Highway and north of Lake Avenue.  

District 3. All that territory lying east of Dixie Highway and north of Lake Avenue.  

District 4. All that territory lying east of Dixie Highway and south of Lake Avenue. 

Current Districts 

An Evaluation of the Existing Districts: 

Referring to the 2020 Census Blocks, the City of Lake Worth Beach has a population of 42,219 which means 

the ideal district size for each of the four election districts is 10,555 people.   District 2 is the largest district 

with 14,149 people and District 4 is the smallest District with 6,539 people. Based on 2020 data, the 

election districts have a total deviation of 133.31% and a spread between the largest and smallest districts 

of 72.10%.  Based on the 2020 Census block data, the current districts are well above the 10% deviation 

(spread) threshold used to evaluate election districts for population equity. 

An Evaluation of Future Growth: 

To ensure that any recommendations for redistricting reflect the most up-to-date information about 

population growth, they are based on projections to 2024. City staff identified developments that were 

not included in the 2020 Census counts but are expected to be constructed and occupied by 2024. These 

projects add a total of 1,554 new units to the city’s existing housing stock. Population projections were 

established for each of these projects by multiplying the number of units by the Persons Per Household 

(PPH) value established by the U.S. Census American Community Survey for the City of Lake Worth Beach 

(2016-2020): 2.9 (with the result rounded to the nearest whole number). These results are listed in  

Table 1 below. (Note: Population projections were made at the census block level, rather than on a project 

by project basis. Rounding error will thus produce a slight discrepancy in the population column if the 

reader attempts to multiply the total units per project by the PPH value, rather than summing the 

projected population for each block, as was done in this case.) In total, 4,508 people will be added to the 

city’s total population count, with the majority (3,588) being allotted to District 2. 



 

Page 4 of 9 

Table 1 – City of Lake Worth Beach 

Population Estimates for Approved Developments 

Note: The U.S. Census average persons per household (2016-2020) for the City of Lake Worth Beach (2.9)  

was used to calculate the population estimate, rounded to the nearest whole number. 

Accounting for this anticipated growth, the 2024 projected population for the City of Lake Worth Beach 

will be 46,727. Dividing by four puts the projected average population for each district at 11,682. The 

Existing Districts Map and Table 2 show the geographic boundaries and projected population counts for 

the current districts. The district with the greatest projected population is District 2 with 17,737 residents; 

the district with the smallest projected population is District 4 with 6,680 residents.  



 

Page 5 of 9 

Under these projections, District 2 will account for the greatest portion of the city’s population at 37.96%. 

This deviates from the theoretical average population of 11,682 by 51.84%. District 4, the smallest district, 

has 14.30% of the population and deviates from the average by -42.82%. This represents a difference of 

11,057 people between the two districts, and a spread of 94.66% (42.82% + 51.84%). The sum deviation 

of all districts, meanwhile, is 153.51% and the mean deviation is 38.38%. As such, the current districts are 

severely unbalanced and the anticipated growth will exacerbate the situation. While the current district 

configuration is geographically compact and utilizes easy to understand boundaries consistent with the 

descriptions in the City Charter, the current population imbalance exceeds the standard criterion for 

redistricting: there must be no more than a 10% deviation between districts. 

Table 2 – Current Commission Districts – City of Lake Worth Beach 

2020 Enumeration and 2024 Population Projection 

The overall pattern of district boundary changes would need to increase the population of District 3 and 

District 4. This will, of course, necessitate an adjustment of their geographic boundaries where District 3 

and 4 gain territory, while districts 1 and 2 lose territory. 





 

Page 7 of 9 

Redistricting Criteria and Data Sources 

The City’s Charter defines the geographic boundaries of the election districts, but does not clarify the 

process as to how and when election districts should be evaluated. To conduct the City’s redistricting 

process, the consultant will abide by the following standards by which rational districts are developed 

nationwide and which are supported by case law and practice throughout the nation. These criteria can 

be summarized as follows: 

1) Reasonable population equality across districts: 

o Districts should have approximately the same number of people when all persons, 

regardless of age, are counted. Ideal district size is based on the total population divided by 

the number of districts. 

o Redistricting should adhere to Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended and 

interpreted through case law. This criterion requires that minority population clusters be 

respected in the development of district boundaries. Arbitrary dilution and other 

discriminatory practices are prohibited. 

o Redistricting should adhere to Florida’s Fair Districting Amendment. 

o Although deviations should be avoided wherever possible, there must be no more than a 

10% overall deviation from the ideal size across districts. 

2) Geographic contiguity and appropriate compactness: 

o Follow major natural and manmade boundaries to the extent possible in defining 

boundaries of voting districts. 

o Maintain the integrity of communities of interest based on race, life cycle/age, income, and 

other community identity characteristics such as subdivisions. 

o Minimize the degree of change in pre-existing patterns of districts, to promote continuity 

of citizen identification with a district. 

o Maintain district compactness and spatial contiguity. A compact shape for each district will 

be sought in each redistricting option presented to the city. 

The first criterion is of primary importance; the second is significant in guiding decisions in reaching 

reasonable population balance. 

  



 

Page 8 of 9 

In developing revised Lake Worth Beach City Commission election districts, the spatial units used in 

composing or building the districts are residential housing subdivisions (communities) and U.S. Census 

blocks. Subdivisions are typically homogeneous in their housing characteristics and thus serve households 

with broadly similar interests. Therefore, district borders are typically subdivision boundaries and 

associated major roadways or other obvious physical features. U.S. Census blocks are typically subunits in 

subdivisions and are the smallest spatial unit used in tabulating Census data.  

Recommendation 

It is the opinion of the FAU redistricting team, that the existing City Commission election district 

boundaries are severely imbalanced and that a realignment of these boundaries, to better balance their 

population, is required. Without redistricting, the sum of the deviations from the ideal average population 

is expected to be 153.51%, with a mean deviation of 38.38%, and a spread of 94.66%. This far exceeds 

the 10% desired maximum. 

The overall pattern of district boundary changes will need to increase the population of District 3 and 4 to 

achieve the desired population equity between districts. This will necessitate an adjustment of the 

geographic boundaries where District 1 and 2 decrease in size. Should the City of Lake Worth Beach opt 

to proceed, it is the intent of the FAU team to provide the City’s Commission with redistricting map 

alternatives for their consideration, consistent with the terms of the agreement between FAU and the 

City. FAU will work with City staff to schedule future meetings to present the redistricting map alternatives 

to the City Commission.  

Appendix 

District Demographics 

The table below depict the demographics taken from the 2020 U.S. Census for the existing commission 

districts. Note that the columns ‘White’ through ‘Other’ sum to the City’s population total. These 

categories represent the U.S. Census’ definition of race. The last two columns (‘Hispanic or Latino’ and 

‘Not Hispanic or Latino’) also sum to the City’s population total (the U.S. Census’ classification of ethnicity).



 

 

Current Commission Districts – City of  Lake Worth Beach 

Expanded Demographics, U.S. Census 2020 



Deviation Summary 





































































FLORIDA ATLANTIC UNIVERSITY

City Commission Election District Analysis

October 6, 2022 • City of  Lake Worth Beach, Florida



Agenda

• The FAU Redistricting Team

• The City Charter

• The Process

• District Population Analysis

• 2020 Enumeration

• 2024 Projection 

• Next Steps

• Redistricting Criteria

• Map Alternatives 1 to 4

• Summary of Map Alternatives



FAU Redistricting Team

• Steven C. Bourassa, Ph.D.

• Professor and Chair, Runstad Department of Real Estate, University of Washington; 

Formerly Professor and Chair, Department of Urban and Regional Planning

• James Gammack-Clark, M.A., Ph.D. candidate (ABD)

• Senior Instructor, Department of Geosciences

• Ronald R. Schultz, Ph.D.

• Professor Emeritus, Department of Geosciences

• Michael Stamm, Jr., MURP

• Adjunct Faculty, Department of Urban and Regional Planning



City Charter 
Current Election Districts

Four election districts

All territory lying:

1. West of Dixie Hwy and 

south of Lake Ave

2. West of Dixie Hwy and 

north of Lake Ave

3. East of Dixie Hwy and 

north of Lake Ave

4. East of Dixie Hwy and 

south of Lake Ave



The Process

• Part A – Current District Analysis and Population Projections

• September 7, 2022: report submitted to City

• September 12, 2022: City Commission voted to proceed to Part B

• Part B – Creation of Redistricting Map Alternatives

• Presentation of alternatives to City Commission and public

• Map selection and adoption by ordinance



Data

• U.S. Census Bureau’s 2020 Census Redistricting Summary Files 

[Public Law 94-171]:

• Resident population counts by census block

• The smallest enumeration unit possible

• Aggregated to form each of the four voting districts

• Housing data provided by the City of Lake Worth Beach

• From which Population Estimates were derived to account for 

new housing, completed since April 1, 2020 (Census Day) 

or scheduled for completion and occupancy by February of 2024



2020 Enumeration and 2024 Population Projection

• 2020 US Census Blocks:

• The population of the City of Lake Worth Beach is 42,219

• Average population for each district is 10,555



Existing Districts –
Projections

• Projection required 

to determine future 

population equity

• 3,958 people will 

be added to the 

city by 2024

• The majority of which 

(3,018) will be 

located in District 2



2020 Enumeration and 2024 Population Projection

• 2024 population projection :

• The population of the City of Lake Worth Beach will be 46,177

• Average population for each district will be 11,544



District Analysis – PROJECTED (2024)

• Largest: District 2 will have 17,166 people

• 5,622 (48.70%) more people than the projected average

• Smallest: District 4 will have 6,701 people

• 4,483 (41.95%) fewer people than the projected average



District Analysis - PROJECTED (2024)

• Population imbalance will become even more extreme

• Total deviation of 150.21% across all four districts

• Spread = 90.65% (48.7% + 41.95% between highest and lowest districts)

• Exceeding max. 10% overall deviation from the ideal size across districts



Next Steps:

• Part B

• Election districts are severely out of balance

• City needs to redistrict

• The overall pattern of district boundary changes will need to increase the 

population of Districts 3 and 4, while reducing that of Districts 1 and 2 

• This will necessitate an adjustment of the geographic boundaries where 

District 3 and 4 must expand in size, while Districts 1 and 2 must contract 

• Creation of map options for Commission consideration

• The Charter does not provide guidance for redistricting 

• It only defines the existing district boundaries



COMMISSION ELECTION DISTRICT 
MAP ALTERNATIVES



Redistricting Parameters

• The following guide our efforts:

1. Reasonable population equality across districts

• A maximum 10% overall deviation from the ideal size across districts.

• Adhere to Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965: Arbitrary dilution of minority 
population clusters and other discriminatory practices are prohibited.

2. Geographic contiguity and appropriate compactness

• Follow major natural and manmade boundaries where possible.

• Respect for the integrity of communities of interest.

• Minimize the degree of change in pre-existing patterns of districts.

• Population equality is of primary importance
• The others are significant in guiding decisions towards reaching 

reasonable population balance.



Alternatives

• Four Alternatives have been prepared for consideration:

• All meet standard districting guidelines

• Alternative ways to better balance district populations 

• Keep with the intent of the other identified guidelines 



Alternative 1

• The biggest departure from the city’s 
present four quadrant configuration: 

• North-South border becomes Lucerne Ave, 
except where District 4 projects north to 
7th Ave, east of Federal Hwy

• East-West border largely remains Dixie Hwy

• Except for where District 3 projects west to 
North A St, south of 10th Ave, and where 

• District 4 projects west to High Ridge Rd 
south of 12th Ave S







Alternative 1

• District 1 gains:

• 384 people from District 2 

• That area south of Lucerne Ave and west of Dixie Hwy 

• District 3 gains: 

• 5,018 people from District 2 

• That part of the Tropical Ridge community found to the 
west of Dixie Hwy, east of A St, north of Lucerne Ave, 
and south of 10th Ave N

• District 4 gains: 

• 981 people from District 3

• To the south and east Federal Hwy and  7th Ave N, and the 
area between Lucerne Ave and Lake Worth Rd, east of Dixie

• 3,509 people from District 1 

• South of 12th Ave S and west of Dixie Hwy



Alternative 1

• Only three neighborhoods are split: 

• Fewest among the four alternatives

• Tropical Ridge, Parrot Cove, and 
Residences of Lake Osborne 



Alternative 1

• Overall deviation is much improved under Alternative 1

• Total deviation falls from 150.21% to 7.44%

• Mean deviation falls from of 37.55% to 1.86%

• The spread falls from 90.65% to 4.96%



Alternative 2

• Maintains, somewhat, the four quadrant 
arrangement of the existing Districts: 

• Though the four districts no longer meet at a 
common intersection

• North-South border remains Lake Worth Rd, 
except where District 1 expands north to the 
west of I-95, south of 7th Ave N

• East-West border between Districts 2 and 3 
moves west to the FEC Railway

• Between Districts 1 & 4, the East-West 
boundary moves west to South E St 







Alternative 2

• District 1 gains:

• 2,053 people from District 2 

• That portion of the Lake Worth Park of Commerce, 
south of 7th Ave S

• District 3 gains: 

• 3,220 people from District 2 

• That area between Dixie Hwy and the FEC Railway, 
north of Lake Worth Rd

• District 4 gains: 

• 4,800 people from District 1

• That area between Dixie Hwy and South E St, 
south of Lake Worth Rd



Alternative 2

• Eight neighborhoods are split: 

• Most among the four alternatives

• Sunset Ridge, Tropical Ridge, 
Royal Poinciana, Memorial Park, 
Whispering Palms, Downtown Jewel, 
Bryant Park, and Commerce Park Village 



Alternative 2

• Overall deviation is much improved under Alternative 2

• Total deviation falls from 150.21% to 11.27%

• Mean deviation falls from of 37.55% to 2.82% (highest of the alternatives)

• The spread falls from 90.65% to 8.28% (highest of the alternatives)



Alternative 3

• Variant of Alternative 2 that creates a 
more compact and balanced District 1 
while leaving District 4 unchanged: 

• North-South border remains Lake Worth Rd, 
except where District 1 expands north to 
3rd Ave N, east of I-95

• To improve population equity between 
Districts 2 and 3, several jogs are introduced 
to their East-West border: from Dixie Hwy 
to the FEC railway south of Worthmore Dr, 
then to E St south of 7th Ave N

• Between Districts 1 and 4, the East-West 
boundary moves west to South E St 







Alternative 3

• District 1 gains:

• 1,643 people from District 2 

• That portion of Tropical Ridge, south of 3rd Ave N
and west of E St

• District 3 gains: 

• 3,917 people from District 2 

• That area between Dixie Hwy and the FEC Railway, 
north of 7th Ave N and south of Worthmore Dr, together 
with that area between Dixie Hwy and E St, 
south of 7th Ave N and north of Lake Worth Rd

• District 4 gains: 

• 4,800 people from District 1

• That area between Dixie Hwy and the South E St, 
south of Lake Worth Rd



Alternative 3

• Seven neighborhoods are split: 

• Sunset Ridge, Tropical Ridge, 
Royal Poinciana, Memorial Park, 
Whispering Palms, Downtown Jewel, 
and Bryant Park



Alternative 3

• Overall deviation is much improved under Alternative 3

• Total deviation falls from 150.21% to 2.62%

• Mean deviation falls from of 37.55% to 0.66% (lowest of the alternatives)

• The spread falls from 90.65% to 1.72% (lowest of the alternatives)



Alternative 4

• Marries the best of Alt. 1 and 3 together: 

• North-South border remains Lake Worth Rd, 
except where District 1 expands north to 
3rd Ave N, east of I-95

• To improve population equity between 
Districts 2 and 3, several jogs are introduced 
to their East-West border: from Dixie Hwy 
to the FEC railway south of Worthmore Dr, 
then to E St south of 10th Ave N

• Between Districts 1 and 4, the East-West 
boundary moves west to the FEC Railway, 
and then District 4 projects west to High 
Ridge Rd south of 12th Ave S







Alternative 4

• District 1 gains:

• 1,797 people from District 2 

• That area south of 3rd Ave N and west of E St, together with 
that area found to the west of the FEC Railway between 
Lucerne Ave and Lake Worth Rd

• District 3 gains: 

• 4,187 people from District 2 

• That area between Dixie Hwy and the FEC Railway, 
north of 10th Ave N and south of Worthmore Dr, together 
with that area between Dixie Hwy and E St, 
south of 10th Ave N and north of Lucerne Ave



Alternative 4

• District 4 gains: 

• 4,513 people from District 1

• That area between Dixie Hwy and the FEC Railway, 
and that part of the city found to the east of Dixie Hwy and 
south of 12th Ave S

• 10 people from District 2

• That area found between Lucerne Ave and Lake Worth Rd, 
and between Dixie Hwy and the FEC Railway

• 236 people from District 3

• That area found between Lucerne Ave and Lake Worth Rd, 
and east of the FEC Railway



Alternative 4

• Four neighborhoods are split: 

• Sunset Ridge, Tropical Ridge, 
Royal Poinciana, and Memorial Park



Alternative 4

• Overall deviation is much improved under Alternative 4

• Total deviation falls from 150.21% to 7.91%

• Mean deviation falls from of 37.55% to 1.98%

• The spread falls from 90.65% to 6.10%



Summary

• All of the alternatives dramatically improve population equity

• Alt 1 splits the fewest number of number of neighborhoods 

• Alt 2 attempts to maintain the existing 4 quadrants configuration

• Alt 3 is the most balanced of the options presented

• Alt 4 marries the best of aspects of Alt’s 1 and 3 together



FLORIDA ATLANTIC UNIVERSITY

City of Lake Worth Beach Redistricting Alternatives

Questions?









STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Financial Services 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 85-2022 – Revised Investment Policy 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution No. 85-2022 amends the investment policy designed to ensure prudent management of public 
funds for the City of Lake Worth Beach.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The purpose of this investment policy is to set forth the investment objectives and parameters for the 
management of public funds of City of Lake Worth Beach cash surplus funds and reserves. This policy 
is designed to ensure the prudent management of public funds, the availability of operating and capital 
funds when needed, and an investment return competitive with comparable funds and financial market 
indices.  

In accordance with § 218.415, Florida Statutes, this policy applies to the investment of public funds in 
excess of the amounts needed to meet current expenses, which includes cash and investment balances 
of the following funds: 

 General Fund 

 Special Revenue Funds 

 Debt Service Funds 

 Capital Project Funds 

 Enterprise Funds 

 Internal Service Funds 

 Trust and Agency Funds 

 Any new fund created by the governing body 

The policy does not apply to the investment of principal, interest, reserve, construction, capitalized 
interest, and redemption or escrow accounts created by ordinance or resolution pursuant to the issuance 
of bonds where the investments are held by an authorized depository. Also, this policy does not apply to 
funds not under investment control of the City; such as Employee Pension Plans. 

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 85-2022 – Revised Investment Policy designed to ensure 
prudent management of public funds for the City. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Resolution 85-2022 
Investment Policy Draft 



85-2022 1 
 2 
 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 85-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 4 

FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING A REVISED INVESTMENT POLICY; 5 

PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS; 6 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 7 

DATE 8 

WHEREAS, the Investment Policy (hereafter “policy”) is to set forth the investment 9 

objectives and parameters for the management of public funds of City of Lake Worth 10 

Beach (hereinafter “City”) cash surplus funds and reserves.  11 

WHEREAS, in order to comply with Chapter 218.415, Florida Statutes, governing 12 

Municipal Investment policies, the policy applies to the investment of public funds in 13 

excess of the amounts needed to meet current expenses, which includes cash and 14 

investment balances of various funds. 15 

WHEREAS, the primary objective of the Director of Financial Services is the 16 

protection of City funds (preservation of capital) to keep capital losses to a minimum, 17 

whether they are from securities defaults or erosion of market value.  18 

WHEREAS, the second highest priority is liquidity of funds to meet the City’s 19 

reasonable anticipated cash flow requirements.  20 

WHEREAS, the third highest priority is income to increase the value of the 21 

portfolios through reinvestment of income and capital gains.  22 

WHEREAS, the Director of Financial Services will seek to control credit and market 23 

risks and diversify fixed investments regarding specific types, maturities, and financial 24 

institutions.  25 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 26 

WORTH, FLORIDA: 27 

Section 1.  That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby made a specific 28 

part of this Resolution. 29 

Section. 2.  That the City of Lake Worth Beach revised investment policy is hereby 30 

attached and is hereby made a part of this Resolution.  31 

Section 3.  That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 32 

repealed. 33 

Section 4.  That if any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 34 

or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 35 

applications of the Resolution, which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 36 

application, and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared severable. 37 



Pg. 2, Reso. 85-2022 

Section 5.  That this Resolution shall take effective immediately upon adoption. 38 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ______________, 39 

seconded by Commissioner ______________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 40 

was as follows: 41 

Mayor Betty Resch  42 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  43 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  44 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 45 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  46 
 47 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 48 

_____ day of ____________, 2022.  49 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 50 

 51 
 52 

By: __________________________ 53 
Betty Resch, Mayor 54 

ATTEST: 55 
 56 
 57 

______________________________ 58 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 59 



DRAFT 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Implements Resolution #28‐2010 

Effective Date:  08/17/2010 

 

Amendment # 1:    43‐2012 

Effective Date:    09/11/2012 

 

Amendment # 2:    65‐2013 

Effective Date:    12/03/2013 



Pg. 2, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 2 Investment Policies 
 

 

Amendment # 3:    xx‐2022 

Effective Date:   03/01/2022 



Pg. 3, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 3 Investment Policies 

 

Table of Contents 

PURPOSE .................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

SCOPE.......................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES ................................................................................................................................. 5 

Safety of Principal ................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Maintenance of Liquidity ...................................................................................................................................... 5 

Return on Investment ............................................................................................................................................. 6 

Diversification ......................................................................................................................................................... 6 

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT ...................................................................................................................... 6 

PRUDENCE AND ETHICAL STANDARDS ....................................................................................................... 7 

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ........................................................................................................................... 8 

SECURITY SELECTION PROCESS ....................................................................................................................... 8 

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS ............................................................................................................................ 8 

EXISTING INVESTMENTS .................................................................................................................................. 11 

Maturity and Liquidity Requirements ............................................................................................................... 11 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION ............................................................................................................................. 12 

RISK AND DIVERSIFICATION .......................................................................................................................... 14 

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS .............................................................. 14 

Brokers/Dealers ..................................................................................................................................................... 14 

EXTERNAL INVESTMENT MANAGER............................................................................................................ 14 

Purpose .................................................................................................................................................................. 14 

Monitoring and Adjusting the Portfolio ............................................................................................................ 15 

Authorized Investments ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

Accounting Methods ............................................................................................................................................ 15 

Performance Evaluation ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

Fees ......................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

THIRD PARTY CUSTODIAL AGREEMENTS ................................................................................................. 16 

BEST EXECUTION BID POLICY ......................................................................................................................... 16 

INTERNAL CONTROLS ....................................................................................................................................... 17 

CONTINUING EDUCATION .............................................................................................................................. 18 

REPORTING ............................................................................................................................................................ 18 

AUDITS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 19 



Pg. 4, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 4 Investment Policies 
 

POLICY REVIEW AND AMENDMENT ............................................................................................................ 19 

ATTACHMENT A:  Glossary of Cash and Investment Management Terms 

ATTACHMENT B:  Investment Pool/Fund Questionnaire 



Pg. 5, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 5 Investment Policies 

 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Investment Policy (hereafter “policy”) is to set forth the investment objectives 

and parameters for the management of public funds of City of Lake Worth Beach (hereinafter 

“City”)  cash  surplus  funds  and  reserves.  This  policy  is  designed  to  ensure  the  prudent 

management of public funds, the availability of operating and capital funds when needed, and 

an investment return competitive with comparable funds and financial market indices. 

 

 

SCOPE  

In accordance with § 218.415, Florida Statutes,  this policy applies  to  the  investment of public 

funds  in  excess  of  the  amounts  needed  to meet  current  expenses, which  includes  cash  and 

investment balances (hereafter “portfolios”) of the following funds: 

 General Fund 

 Special Revenue Funds 

 Debt Service Funds 

 Capital Project Funds 

 Enterprise Funds 

 Internal Service Funds 

 Trust and Agency Funds 

 Any new fund created by the governing body 

 

The  policy  does  not  apply  to  the  investment  of  principal,  interest,  reserve,  construction, 

capitalized  interest,  and  redemption  or  escrow  accounts  created  by  ordinance  or  resolution 

pursuant to the issuance of bonds where the investments are held by an authorized depository. 

Also,  this  policy does  not  apply  to  funds  not  under  investment  control  of  the City,  such  as 

Employee Pension Plans. 

 

 
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

The following investment objectives will be applied in the management of the Cityʹs funds. 

 

Safety of Principal 

The primary objective of the Director of Financial Services investment activities is the protection 

of City funds (preservation of capital). Investment transactions shall seek to keep capital losses to 

a minimum, whether they are from securities defaults or erosion of market value. 

 

Maintenance of Liquidity 

The second highest priority is liquidity of funds. The Director of Financial Services investment 

strategy will  provide  sufficient  liquidity  to meet  the Cityʹs  reasonable  anticipated  cash  flow 



Pg. 6, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 6 Investment Policies 
 

requirements.   

 

Return on Investment 

The third highest priority is income. The optimization of investment returns shall be secondary 

to  the  requirements  for  safety  and  liquidity.  Return  on  investment  is  of  least  importance 

compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. However, return is attempted 

through active management where the investment manager utilizes a total return strategy (which 

includes both realized and unrealized gains and losses in the portfolios). This total return strategy 

seeks to increase the value of the portfolios through reinvestment of income and capital gains. 

The core of investments is limited to relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair 

return relative to the risk being assumed. The investment manager or City designee will execute 

trades that minimize the risk of loss to achieve the highest perceived relative value based on its 

potential to enhance the total return of the portfolios.  

 

Diversification 

Director of Financial Services will  seek  to  control  credit and market  risks and diversify  fixed 

income  investments  regarding  specific  types,  maturities,  and  financial  institutions. 

Diversification is important to ensure that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed 

the income generated from the remainder of the portfolios. 

 

Credit Risk 

Minimizing Credit Risk will be accomplished by limiting the maximum percentage that may 

be invested in any one entity or instrument at any one time, as outlined in this policy. 

 

Market Risk 

Risks  of  market  price  volatility  shall  be  controlled  through  maturity  diversification 

limitations established by this policy. 

 

 

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT 

In order to assist in the evaluation of the portfolio’s performance, the City will use performance 

benchmarks for short‐term and long‐term portfolios. The use of benchmarks will allow the City 

to measure its returns against other investors in the same markets. 

 

A.  The  short‐term  investment  portfolios  shall  be  designed with  the  annual  objective  of 

exceeding the weighted average return (net book value rate of return) of the S&P Rated 

GIP Index/All 30‐Day Gross of Fees Yield. 

 

B.  The  long‐term  investment  portfolios  shall  be  designed  with  the  annual  objective  of 

exceeding the return of the BofA Merrill Lynch 1‐3 Year U.S. Treasury Index compared to 

the portfolios’ total rate of return. The BofA Merrill Lynch 1‐3 Year U.S. Treasury Index 



Pg. 7, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 7 Investment Policies 

 

represents all U.S. Treasury securities maturing over one year, but less than three years.  

This maturity range is an appropriate benchmark based on the objectives of the City. 

 

 

PRUDENCE AND ETHICAL STANDARDS 

The ʺprudent personʺ standard shall be used by all City Staff and third‐party vendors providing 

investment services in the management of the overall portfolio. The Financial Services Director, 

his/her designee, or persons performing  the  investment  functions,  acting  suitable  capacity  in 

accordance with these written policies and procedures, and exercising due diligence, shall not be 

responsible  for  an  individual  securityʹs  credit  risk  or  market  price  changes  provided  that 

appropriate monitoring efforts are performed. For any external City Designee(s), it is expected 

that they will have a higher fiduciary standard of care, acting in suitable capacity. The ʺprudent 

personʺ standard is herewith understood to mean the following: 

 

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances 

then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence 

exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but 

for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as 

the probable income to be derived from the investment.  
 

The Prudent Person  standard  shall be applied  to all activities associated with managing City 

funds,  including;  the  investing,  reinvesting  funds and  in acquiring,  retaining, managing, and 

disposing of investments.  Those individuals responsible for the City’s investment oversight and 

management, including third party vendors, shall exercise: the judgment, care, skill, prudence, 

and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, 

and intelligence, acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct 

of an enterprise of like character and with like aims by diversifying the investments of the funds, 

so as to minimize the risk, considering the probable income as well as the probable safety of their 

capital. 

 

The Financial Services Department staff  involved  in  the  investment process shall refrain  from 

personal business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, 

or which  could  impair  their  ability  to make  impartial  investment decisions. Also,  employees 

involved in the investment process shall disclose to the Financial Services Director any material 

financial  interests  in  financial  institutions  that conduct business with  the City, and  they  shall 

further disclose any material personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 

performance of the City’s investment program. 

 

 



Pg. 8, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 8 Investment Policies 
 

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

Responsibility  for  the  administration  of  the  investment  program  is  hereby  delegated  to  the 

Financial Services Director or his/her designee, who shall establish investment procedures based 

on this policy. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as stated in the Internal 

Control Section of the policy. The City may appoint an outside investment manager as ʺAgentʺ for 

the Cityʹs investments. (See Section ʺExternal Investment Managerʺ.) It is further recommended that 

if  the City does  appoint  an  outside  investment manager,  that  they  are  a  fiduciary  of  the City.  

Positions authorized as investment signatories are Financial Services Director, Assistant Financial 

Services Director,  and Treasurer. The  Financial  Services Director  or  his/her  designee  shall  be 

responsible  for  the  implementation  of  internal  controls  and  monitoring  the  activities  of 

subordinate staff. 

 

 

SECURITY SELECTION PROCESS 

When purchasing or selling securities the Financial Services Director or his/her designee shall select 

the security which provides the highest rate of return within the parameters of this policy, given the 

current objectives and needs of the Cityʹs portfolios. These selections shall be made utilizing one of 

the following methods: 

 

1. Comparison  to  the current market price as  indicated by one of  the market 

pricing resources available to the City (such as the Cityʹs financial advisors, 

the Wall  Street  Journal,  or  a  comparable  nationally  recognized  financial 

publication providing daily market pricing). 

2. The City shall avoid conflicts of interest in the selection of institutions used for 

all City investments. 

 

In most situations, the City or its agent shall utilize the best execution policy of the agent to select 

the  securities  to be purchased or  sold. Selection by  the best execution policy of  the agent, as 

indicated above,  shall be utilized when,  in  the  judgment of  the  investment  staff,  competitive 

bidding would inhibit the process to select the securities to be purchased or sold. 

 

 

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

No investment shall be made using City funds unless the authorized investment is listed in this 

Section. The following are the investment requirements and allocation limits on security types, 

issuers, and maturities as established by the City. Diversification strategies within the established 

guidelines  shall  be  reviewed  and  revised periodically  as  necessary  by  the  Financial  Services 

Director or his/her designee. The Financial Services Director or his/her designee, and/or City’s 

investment manager shall have the option to further restrict investment percentages from time to 

time based on market conditions, risk and diversification investment strategies. The percentage 

allocations requirements for  investment  types and  issuers are calculated based on  the original 

cost of each  investment, at  the  time of purchase. The  following  requirements do not apply  to 



Pg. 9, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 9 Investment Policies 

 

funds derived from the sale of debt. 

1) U.S. Treasury & Government Guaranteed  ‐ U.S. Treasury obligations, and obligations 
the principal and interest of which are backed or guaranteed by the full faith and credit of 

the U.S. Government. 

2) Federal Agency/GSE  ‐ Debt obligations, participations or other  instruments  issued or 

fully guaranteed by any U.S. Federal agency, instrumentality or government‐sponsored 

enterprise (GSE). 

3) Corporates – U.S. dollar denominated corporate notes, bonds or other debt obligations 

issued or guaranteed by a domestic corporation, financial institution, non‐profit, or other 

entity. 

4) Municipals – Obligations, including both taxable and tax‐exempt, issued or guaranteed 

by any State,  territory or possession of  the United States, political  subdivision, public 

corporation, authority, agency board, instrumentality or other unit of local government of 

any State or territory. 

5) Agency Mortgage  Backed  Securities  ‐ Mortgage‐backed  securities  (MBS),  backed  by 

residential,  non‐Agency  commercial  mortgage  backed  securities,  multi‐family  or 

commercial mortgages, that are issued or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by 

a U.S. Federal agency or government sponsored enterprise, including but not limited to 

pass‐throughs, collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and REMICs. 

6) Asset‐Backed  Securities  ‐ Asset‐backed  securities  (ABS) whose  underlying  collateral 

consists  of  loans,  leases  or  receivables,  including but not  limited  to  auto  loans/leases, 

credit card receivables, student loans, equipment loans/leases, or home‐equity loans. 

7) Non‐Negotiable Certificate of Deposit and Savings Accounts ‐ Non‐negotiable interest‐

bearing time certificates of deposit, or savings accounts in banks organized under the laws 

of this state or in national banks organized under the laws of the United States and doing 

business in this state, provided that any such deposits are secured by the Florida Security 

for Public Deposits Act, Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. 

8) Commercial Paper – U.S. dollar denominated commercial paper issued or guaranteed by 

a  domestic  corporation,  company,  financial  institution,  trust  or  other  entity,  only 

unsecured debt permitted. 

9) Money Market Funds  ‐ Shares  in open‐end and no‐load money market mutual  funds, 

provided  such  funds  are  registered  under  the  Investment Company Act  of  1940  and 

operate in accordance with Rule 2a‐7. 

A  thorough  investigation  of  any money market  fund  is  required  prior  to  investing. 



Pg. 10, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 10 Investment Policies 
 

Attachment B is a questionnaire that contains a list of questions, to be answered prior to 

investing, that cover the major aspects of any investment pool/fund. A current prospectus 

must be obtained. 

 

10) Local Government Investment Pools – State,  local government or privately‐sponsored 

investment pools that are authorized pursuant to state law. 

A thorough investigation of any intergovernmental investment pool is required prior to 

investing. Attachment B is a questionnaire that contains a list of questions, to be answered 

prior to  investing, that cover the major aspects of any  investment pool/fund. A current 

prospectus must be obtained. 

 

11) The  Florida  Local  Government  Surplus  Funds  Trust  Funds  (“Florida  Prime”)  A 
thorough investigation of the Florida Prime is required prior to investing. Attachment B 

is a questionnaire that contains a list of questions, to be answered prior to investing, that 

cover the major aspects of any investment pool/fund. A current prospectus or portfolio 

report must be obtained. 

 

12) Inter‐Fund Loans permitted under the Cityʹs Comprehensive Financial Policies 

 

 

General Investment and Portfolio Limits 

1. General investment limitations: 

a. Investments must be denominated in U.S. dollars and issued for legal sale in U.S. 

markets. 

b. Minimum  ratings  are  based  on  the  highest  rating  by  any  one  Nationally 

Recognized  Statistical  Ratings  Organization  (“NRSRO”),  unless  otherwise 

specified.   

c. All limits and rating requirements apply at time of purchase.   

d. Should a security fall below the minimum credit rating requirement for purchase, 

the investment manager will notify the Financial Services Director. 

e. The maximum maturity  (or average  life  for MBS/ABS) of any  investment  is 5.5 

years.   Maturity and average  life are measured from settlement date.   The final 

maturity date can be based on any mandatory call, put, pre‐refunding date, or 

other mandatory redemption date. 

2. General portfolio limitations: 

a. The maximum effective duration of the aggregate portfolio is 3 years. 

3. The  following  are NOT  PERMITTED  investments,  unless  specifically  authorized  by 

statute and with prior approval of the governing body:  

 

 



Pg. 11, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 11 Investment Policies 

 

a. Trading for speculation 

b. Derivatives  (other  than  callables  and  traditional  floating  or  variable‐rate 

instruments)  

c. Mortgage‐backed interest‐only structures  (I/Os) 

d. Inverse or leveraged floating‐rate and variable‐rate instruments 

e. Currency,  equity,  index  and  event‐linked  notes  (e.g.  range  notes),  or  other 

structures that could return less than par at maturity 

f. Private placements and direct loans, except as may be legally permitted by Rule 

144A or commercial paper issued under a 4(2) exemption from registration 

g. Convertible, high yield, and non‐U.S. dollar denominated debt 

h. Short sales  

i. Use of leverage 

j. Futures and options 

k. Mutual funds 

l. Equities, commodities, currencies and hard assets 

 

 

EXISTING INVESTMENTS 

Any investments currently held that do not meet the guidelines of this policy shall be exempted from 

the  requirements  of  this  policy. At maturity  or  liquidation,  such monies  so  invested  shall  be 

reinvested only as provided for in this policy. 

 

Maturity and Liquidity Requirements 

A. To  the  extent possible,  an  attempt will be made  to match  investment maturities with 

known  cash  needs  and  anticipated  cash  flow  requirements.    Investments  of  current 

operating  funds  shall  have  maturities  of  no  longer  than  twenty‐four  (24)  months. 

Investments of bond reserves, construction  funds, and other non‐operating  funds shall 

have a term appropriate to the need for funds and in accordance with debt covenants, but 

in no event shall exceed five and one‐half (5.50) years. The maturities of the underlying 

securities  of  a  repurchase  agreement  will  follow  the  requirements  of  the  Master 

Repurchase Agreement. 

 

B. The  Finance  staff’s  policy  is  to  “buy  and  hold”  but  the maturity  composition  of  the 

portfolio  and  the  general  economic  conditions  will  be  evaluated  to  determine  if  a 

replacement investment would be advantageous. Accounting losses may be incurred in 

this situation if an economic gain is achieved. The portfolios maturity may be shortened 

or  extended  dependent  on  interest  rate  projections  or  the  portfolios  quality may  be 

improved by reducing the maturity or risk of security. 

 



Pg. 12, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 12 Investment Policies 
 

C. Investments do not necessarily have to be made for the same length of time that the funds 

are available. The basic criteria for consideration for investments are listed below: 

   

1. Keep maturities short in a period of constantly rising interest rates based on treasury 

bill auctions or the daily Federal Funds rate and also keep maturities short in a period 

of an  inverted  treasury yield curve  (short‐term rates are higher  than  the  long‐term 

rates). 

2. Maturities  should  be  lengthened when  the  treasury  yield  curve  is  normal  and  is 

expected to remain that way based on economic reports taken as a whole. The yield 

curve is normal when short‐term rates are lower than long‐term rates. 

3. Maturities  should be  lengthened when  interest  rates  are  expected  to  fall based on 

economic reports taken as a whole. 

4. The yield curves of the market should be analyzed for significant breaks in yields over 

various maturity dates. The points at which the yield curve breaks are the points at 

which there are significant marginal declines in yields for incremental changes in the 

maturity dates. Investments should be made at these breaks in the yield curve so that 

yields will be maximized. 

 

 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 

Prudent  investing necessitates  that  the portfolios be diversified as  to  instruments and dealers.  

The following are guidelines for investments and limits on security issues, issuers, and maturities 

as  established  by  the  Finance  staff. The  Finance Director  shall  have  the  option  to  restrict  or 

increase  investments from  time  to  time based on market conditions. Purchases of  investments 

based  on  bond  covenant  requirements  shall  not  be  included  in  the  portfolios’  composition 

calculations.  The  percentage  allocations  requirements  for  investment  types  and  issuers  are 

calculated based on the original cost of each investment, at the time of purchase. 

   



Pg. 13, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 13 Investment Policies 

 

Permitted Investments 

Sector 

Sector 

Maximum 

(%) 

Per Issuer 

Maximum  

(%) 

Minimum Ratings Requirement1 
Maximum 

Maturity 

U.S. Treasury 

100% 

100% 

N/A 

5.50 Years 

(5.50 Years 

avg. life4  

for GNMA) 

GNMA  40% 

Other U.S. Government 

Guaranteed (e.g. AID, GTC) 
10% 

Federal Agency/GSE: 

FNMA, FHLMC, FHLB, 

FFCB*  80% 

40%3 

N/A  5.50 Years 

Federal Agency/GSE  

other than those above 
10% 

Corporates  40%2  5% 
Highest ST or Three Highest LT Rating Categories 

(A‐1/P‐1, A‐/A3 or equivalent) 
5.50 Years 

Municipals  40%  5% 
Highest ST or Three Highest LT Rating Categories  

 (SP‐1/MIG 1, A‐/A3, or equivalent) 
5.50 Years 

Agency Mortgage‐Backed 

Securities (MBS) 
40%  40%3  N/A 

5.50 Years  

Avg. Life4 

Non‐Negotiable 

Collateralized Bank 

Deposits or Savings 

Accounts 

50% 
None, if fully 

collateralized 
None, if fully collateralized.  3 Years 

Commercial Paper (CP)  30%2  5% 
Highest ST Rating Category  

(A‐1/P‐1, or equivalent) 
270 Days 

Money Market Funds 

(MMFs) 
50%  25% 

Highest Fund Rating by all NRSROs who rate the 

fund (AAAm/Aaa‐mf, or equivalent) 
N/A 

Intergovernmental Pools 

(LGIPs) 
50%  25% 

Highest Fund Quality and Volatility Rating 

Categories by all NRSROs who rate the LGIP,  

(AAAm/AAAf, S1, or equivalent) 

N/A 

Florida Local Government 

Surplus Funds Trust Funds 

(“Florida Prime”) 

25%  N/A 
Highest Fund Rating by all NRSROs who rate the 

fund (AAAm/Aaa‐mf, or equivalent) 
N/A 

Inter‐Fund Loans  As needed  As needed  N/A  N/A 

Notes: 

1 Rating by at least one SEC‐registered Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”), unless otherwise noted.  

ST=Short‐term; LT=Long‐term. 

2 Maximum allocation to all corporate and bank credit instruments is 50% combined. 

3 The maturity limit for MBS and ABS is based on the expected average life at time of settlement, measured using Bloomberg or 

other industry standard methods.  

* Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA); Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC); Federal Home Loan Bank 

or its District banks (FHLB); Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB). 

 

 

   



Pg. 14, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 14 Investment Policies 
 

RISK AND DIVERSIFICATION 

 
Assets held shall be diversified  to control  the risk of  loss resulting from over‐concentration of 

assets in a specific maturity, issuer, instrument, dealer, or bank through which these instruments 

are bought and sold. Diversification strategies within the established guidelines shall be reviewed 

and revised periodically as necessary by the appropriate management staff. 

 

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 

 
The  Financial  Services  Director  shall  only  purchase  certificates  of  deposit  from  financial 

institutions which are qualified as public depositories by the Treasurer of the State of Florida.   

 

Brokers/Dealers 

The City may utilize dealers designated as “Primary Dealers” by  the Federal Reserve Bank of 

New York, for purchases and sales of securities. The City may also utilize non‐primary (regional) 

dealers. All securities traded with approved broker/dealers must be DTC eligible. DTC eligible 

securities  are delivered  through  a  computerized  system  established  by  the Depository Trust 

Company  instead  of  physical  delivery. DTC  eligibility  assures  proper  security  delivery. All 

securities purchased by the City under this policy shall be purchased using the ʺDelivery Versus 

Paymentʺ procedure. Both primary and non‐primary dealers must qualify under Securities and 

Exchange  Commission  Rule  15C3‐1  (uniform  net  capital  rule).  The  firms must  provide  the 

following information prior to executing investment trades with the City:   

 

1. Audited annual financial statement. 

2. Regulatory history, through either the Office of the Comptroller or the Currency for dealer 

banks, or the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (FINRA) for securities firms. 

3. Statement of any pending lawsuits materially affecting the firmʹs business. 

4. Proof of state registration. 

 

The City’s  investment manager shall utilize and maintain  its own  list of approved primary and 

non‐primary dealers. 

 

 

EXTERNAL INVESTMENT MANAGER 

Purpose 

The purpose of this section is to set forth the policy and objectives governing the City’s use of external 

investment managers. The outside investment manager for the City is required to adhere to all of 

the  principals  as  set  forth  by  the City  policy  concerning;  purpose,  scope,  objectives,  prudence, 

internal controls, safekeeping and custody, accounting methods, debt service and bond covenants 

requirements, diversification, liquidity, credit risk, market risk and reporting requirements.  

 



Pg. 15, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 15 Investment Policies 

 

 

Monitoring and Adjusting the Portfolio 

The external investment officer will constantly monitor the contents of the portfolio, the available 

markets and the relative values of competing securities and will adjust the portfolio accordingly. The 

external investment manager is required to provide the City with a confirmation of each transaction 

executed within each calendar month by providing the Finance Department with a calendar month 

statement  detailing  each  investment  transaction  and  a  summary  of  all monthly  accumulated 

investment transactions. The confirmations should include all information necessary to allow the 

City to accurately monitor the activity of the external investment officer for compliance purposes 

(including  purchase  price,  coupon,  premium/discount,  investment/transaction  costs  and  the 

effective yield of the investment at the time of purchase and compliance with this policy). 

 

Authorized Investments 

The external  investment manager may  invest only  in  the authorized  investments  instruments, 

listed above. 

 

Due Diligence Requirements 

 

Attachment B is a questionnaire that contains a list of questions, to be answered prior to investing, 

that cover the major aspects of any investment pool/fund. Additionally, a current prospectus or 

equivalent documentation, including an Investment Policy, Financial Statements, and Portfolio 

Holdings must be obtained. 

 

Accounting Methods 

Investments will be carried at market value. Gains and losses from investments will be credited 

or charged to investment income at the time of sale. The external investment manager is restricted 

from executing a trade that will realize a ʺNet Lossʺ in any of the City’s accounts without written 

authorization from the City Manager. A ʺNet Lossʺ is defined as any sale in which the principal 

loss realized on the sale of a security, in an account, is greater than the income (including accrued 

income) generated by that individual account during the Cityʹs fiscal year. Premiums or discounts 

on  securities may  be  amortized  over  the  life  of  the  securities.  The  City  shall  comply with 

Government Accounting  Standards Board  (GASB)  requirements  for  reporting  fiscal year  end 

investment balances. 

 

Performance Evaluation 

The external investment managerʹs performance shall be measured at least annually based on the 

total return of the portfolio. The City will evaluate the investment manager by comparing results 

during the Cityʹs fiscal year to the BofA Merrill Lynch 1‐3 Year U.S. Treasury Index.  

 



Pg. 16, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 16 Investment Policies 
 

Fees 

All fees will be determined annually in advance based on the Cityʹs fiscal year ending September 

30. 

 

 
THIRD PARTY CUSTODIAL AGREEMENTS 

All  securities, with  the  exception  of  certificates  of  deposits,  shall  be  held with  a  third‐party 

custodian; and all securities purchased by the City should be properly designated as an asset of 

the  City.  The  Financial  Services  Director  will  execute  a  Third‐Party  Custodial  Safekeeping 

Agreement with a commercial bank or  the commercial bankʹs  trust department. A  third party 

custodian is defined as any bank depository chartered by the Federal Government, the State of 

Florida, or any other state or territory of the United States which has a branch or principal place 

of  business  in  the  State  of  Florida  as  defined  in  §  658.12  Florida  Statues,  or  by  a  national 

association organized and existing under  the  laws of  the United States which  is authorized  to 

accept and execute trusts and which is doing business in the State of Florida. Third party agents 

will maintain participation  in  SIPC. Certificates  of deposits maintained  by  book‐entry  at  the 

issuing bank shall clearly identify the City as the owner. All securities purchased and/or collateral 

obtained by the City shall be properly designated as an asset of the City and held in safekeeping 

by the custodian and no withdrawal of such securities, in whole or in part, shall be made from 

safekeeping  except  by  an  authorized  Finance  staff  member.  The  Third‐Party  Custodial 

Safekeeping Agreement  shall  include  letters of authority  from  the Financial Services Director 

with details as to responsibilities of each party, notification of security purchases, sales, delivery, 

repurchase agreements, wire transfers, safekeeping and transactions costs, procedures in case of 

wire failure or other unforeseen mishaps including liability of each party.   

 

 

BEST EXECUTION BID POLICY 

After  the  Financial  Services  Director,  Financial  Services  Directors  Designee,  or  investment 

manager has determined the approximate maturity date based on cash flow needs and market 

conditions and has analyzed and  selected one or more optimal  types of  investment,  the Best 

Execution method will be used to purchase the securities. 

 

On an exception basis, securities may be purchased utilizing the comparison to current market 

price method. Acceptable current market price providers include, but are not limited to: 

 

1.  The Wall Street  Journal or a comparable nationally recognized  financial publication 

providing daily market pricing. 

2.  Daily market pricing provided by the Cityʹs custody agents. 

 

 

 



Pg. 17, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 17 Investment Policies 

 

 

 

The Financial Services Department shall utilize the Best Execution process to purchase or sell the 

securities. Selection by comparison to a current market price, as indicated above, shall only be 

utilized when, in the judgment of the Finance Director or his/her designee, competitive bidding 

would inhibit the selection process. Examples of when this method may be used include: 

 

1.  When no active market exists for the issue being traded due to the age or depth of the 

issue. 

2.  When a security is unique to a single dealer, for example, a private placement. 

3.  When the transaction involved new issues or issues in the ʺwhen issuedʺ market. 

 

If the maturing investment is a certificate of deposit, then of the contacts made, one shall be the 

present holder of  the  funds subject  to  the portfolio diversification requirements  in  this policy. 

Due to the cost of safekeeping, one business day repurchase agreements less than $1,000,000 and 

overnight sweep repurchase agreements will not be bid, but may be placed with the depository 

bank relating to the demand account for which the repurchase agreement was purchased. 

 

Notwithstanding  the  above,  in  order  to  afford  local  banks within  the  City  opportunities  to 

enhance the economics of the local area, an aggregate face value of up to $1,000,000 in certificates 

of deposit may be purchased from a local bank provided the following additional conditions have 

been satisfied: 

 

1. The bank is located within the boundaries of City of Lake Worth Beach or has a branch 

office located within the boundaries of City of Lake Worth Beach.  

2. The bank matches the highest bid of three or more bids from other non‐local banks.  

 

 

INTERNAL CONTROLS 

The Financial Services Director or his/her designee shall establish and monitor a set of written 

internal controls designed to protect the Cityʹs funds and ensure proper accounting and reporting 

of securities  transactions. The  internal controls should be designed  to prevent  losses of funds, 

which  might  arise  from  fraud,  employee  error,  and  misrepresentation  by  third  parties,  or 

imprudent actions by employees.  No person may engage in an investment transaction except as 

authorized under the terms of this policy.  Such internal controls shall include, but not be limited 

to, the following: 

 

1. All  securities  purchased  or  sold will  be  transferred  only  under  the  ʺdelivery  versus 

paymentʺ  (D.V.P.) method  to  ensure  that  funds or  securities are not  released until all 

criteria relating to the specific transaction are met. 

 



Pg. 18, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 18 Investment Policies 
 

2. The Financial Services Director or his/her designee is authorized to accept, on behalf of 

and  in  the name of City of Lake Worth Beach, bank  trust  receipts or confirmations as 

evidence of actual delivery of  the obligations or securities  in return  for  investments of 

funds. 

3. Trust receipts or confirmations shall fully describe  the various obligations or securities 

held.   The receipt or confirmation shall state that the investment is held in the name of 

City of Lake Worth Beach. 

4. The actual obligations or securities, whether  in book‐entry or physical  form, on which 

trust receipts or confirmations are  issued, may be held by a third‐party custodial bank 

and/or  institution  or  a  designated  correspondent  bank  which  has  a  correspondent 

relationship to the City’s third‐party custodian. 

 

5. Other internal controls such as: 

 

A. Written documentation of all transactions; including, telephone transactions 

B. Adequate separation of duties 

C. Custodial safekeeping 
D. Supervisory control of employee actions and operations review 

E. Interim and annual performance evaluations and reporting 

 

6. All daily investment activity is coordinated by an assigned Accountant and reviewed by 

the Treasurer as well as the Financial Services Director. The Treasurer oversees day‐to‐

day operations; however,  the whole  investment  function  is under direct control of  the 

Financial Services Director. 

 

 

CONTINUING EDUCATION 

City employees responsible for making investment decisions shall complete 8 hours of continuing 

education annually in subjects or courses of study related to investment practices and products. 

 

REPORTING 

On an annual basis, the Financial Services Director or his/her designee shall submit to the City 

Commission a written report on all invested funds. The annual report shall provide all, but not 

limited to, the following items; 

1. a complete list of all invested funds  

2. the name or type of security in which the funds are invested  

3. the amount invested  

4. the maturity date  

5. earned income  

6. the book value  

7. the market value 

8. the yield on each investment 



Pg. 19, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 19 Investment Policies 

 

 

The annual report will show performance on both a book value and total rate of return basis (if 

applicable)  and  will  compare  the  results  to  the  above‐stated  performance  benchmarks.  All 

investments shall be reported at fair value per the then prevailing GASB Statement governing the 

fair value reporting of investments (currently GASB 72). 

 

AUDITS 

As part of  the City’s annual audit,  the City’s  independent CPA’s, pursuant  to F.S. 11.45, shall 

report the City’s compliance with F.S. 218.415. 

 

POLICY REVIEW AND AMENDMENT 

The  Finance  staff  and  the  Financial  Services Director  or  his/her  designee  shall  review  these 

policies in their entirety on an annual basis. 

 

This policy may be amended in writing from time to time by the City Commission. 

 

 



Pg. 20, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 20 Investment Policies 
 

Attachment A 

 

Glossary of Cash and Investment Management Terms 

 

The following is a glossary of key investing terms, many of which appear in the City’s policy. 

This glossary clarifies the meaning of investment terms generally used in cash and investment 

management. This glossary has been adapted from the GFOA Sample Investment Policy and the 

Association of Public Treasurers of the United States and Canada’s Model Investment Policy.  

Accrued Interest.  Interest earned but which has not yet been paid or received. 

Agency.  See ʺFederal Agency Securities.ʺ 

Ask Price.  Price at which a broker/dealer offers to sell a security to an investor. Also known as 

“offered price.” 

Asset Backed Securities (ABS).  A fixed‐income security backed by notes or receivables against 

assets other than real estate. Generally issued by special purpose companies that “own” the assets 

and  issue  the ABS. Examples  include securities backed by auto  loans, credit card  receivables, 

home equity loans, manufactured housing loans, farm equipment loans, and aircraft leases. 

Average Life.  The average length of time that an issue of serial bonds and/or term bonds with a 

mandatory sinking fund feature is expected to be outstanding. 

Bankersʹ Acceptance (BAʹs).   A draft or bill of exchange drawn upon and accepted by a bank.  

Frequently  used  to  finance  shipping  of  international  goods.  Used  as  a  short‐term  credit 

instrument, bankersʹ acceptances are  traded at a discount  from  face value as a money market 

instrument in the secondary market on the basis of the credit quality of the guaranteeing bank. 

Basis Point.  One hundredth of one percent, or 0.01%. Thus 1% equals 100 basis points. 

Bearer  Security.   A  security whose  ownership  is  determined  by  the  holder  of  the  physical 

security.   Typically,  there  is no  registration on  the  issuer’s books. Title  to bearer  securities  is 

transferred by delivery of the physical security or certificate. Also known as “physical securities.” 

Benchmark Bills:  In November 1999, FNMA introduced its Benchmark Bills program, a short‐

term debt securities  issuance program  to supplement  its existing discount note program. The 

program  includes a  schedule of  larger, weekly  issues  in  three‐ and  six‐month maturities and 

biweekly  issues  in one‐year  for Benchmark Bills. Each  issue  is brought  to market via a Dutch 

(single price) auction. FNMA conducts a weekly auction for each Benchmark Bill maturity and 

accepts both competitive and non‐competitive bids  through a web‐based auction system. This 

program  is  in addition to the variety of other discount note maturities, with rates posted on a 

daily basis, which FNMA offers. FNMAʹs Benchmark Bills are unsecured general obligations that 

are issued in book‐entry form through the Federal Reserve Banks. There are no periodic payments 

of  interest  on Benchmark Bills, which  are  sold  at  a discount  from  the principal  amount  and 

payable  at par  at maturity.  Issues under  the Benchmark  program  constitute  the  same  credit 



Pg. 21, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 21 Investment Policies 

 

standing as other FNMA discount notes; they simply add organization and liquidity to the short‐

term Agency discount note market. 

Benchmark Notes/Bonds:  Benchmark Notes and Bonds are a series of FNMA “bullet” maturities 

(non‐callable) issued according to a pre‐announced calendar. Under its Benchmark Notes/Bonds 

program, 2, 3, 5, 10, and 30‐year maturities are issued each quarter. Each Benchmark Notes new 

issue has a minimum size of $4 billion, 30‐year new issues having a minimum size of $1 billion, 

with re‐openings based on  investor demand  to further enhance  liquidity. The amount of non‐

callable issuance has allowed FNMA to build a yield curve in Benchmark Notes and Bonds in 

maturities ranging from 2 to 30 years. The liquidity emanating from these large size issues has 

facilitated favorable financing opportunities through the development of a liquid overnight and 

term repo market. Issues under the Benchmark program constitute the same credit standing as 

other FNMA issues; they simply add organization and liquidity to the intermediate‐ and long‐

term Agency market. 

Benchmark.  A market index used as a comparative basis for measuring the performance of an 

investment  portfolio.  A  performance  benchmark  should  represent  a  close  correlation  to 

investment guidelines, risk tolerance, and duration of the actual portfolioʹs investments. 

Bid Price.  Price at which a broker/dealer offers to purchase a security from an investor.   

Bond.  Financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder (the purchaser 

or  owner  of  the  bond)  a  specified  stream  of  future  cash‐flows,  including  periodic  interest 

payments and a principal repayment. 

Book Entry Securities.  Securities that are recorded in a customer’s account electronically through 

one of the financial markets electronic delivery and custody systems, such as the Fed Securities 

wire, DTC, and PTC  

(as opposed to bearer or physical securities).  The trend is toward a certificate‐free society in order 

to cut down on paperwork and to diminish investors’ concerns about the certificates themselves. 

The vast majority of securities are now book entry securities. 

Book Value.  The value at which a debt security is reflected on the holderʹs records at any point 

in  time.  Book  value  is  also  called  “amortized  cost”  as  it  represents  the  original  cost  of  an 

investment adjusted for amortization of premium or accretion of discount. Also called “carrying 

value.” Book value can vary over time as an investment approaches maturity and differs from 

“market value” in that it is not affected by changes in market interest rates. 

Broker/Dealer.  A person or firm transacting securities business with customers. A “broker” acts 

as an agent between buyers and sellers, and receives a commission for these services. A “dealer” 

buys and sells financial assets from its own portfolio. A dealer takes risk by owning inventory of 

securities, whereas a broker merely matches up buyers and sellers. See also ʺPrimary Dealer.ʺ 

Bullet Notes/Bonds.  Notes or bonds that have a single maturity date and are non‐callable. 



Pg. 22, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 22 Investment Policies 
 

Call Date.  Date at which a call option may be or is exercised. 

Call Option.  The right, but not the obligation, of an issuer of a security to redeem a security at a 

specified value and at a specified date or dates prior to its stated maturity date. Most fixed‐income 

calls  are  a  par,  but  can  be  at  any  previously  established  price.  Securities  issued with  a  call 

provision typically carry a higher yield than similar securities issued without a call feature. There 

are three primary types of call options (1) European ‐ one‐time calls, (2) Bermudan ‐ periodically 

on a predetermined schedule (quarterly, semi‐annual, annual), and (3) American ‐ continuously 

callable at any time on or after the call date. There is usually a notice period of at least 5 business 

days prior to a call date. 

Callable Bonds/Notes.  Securities which contain an imbedded call option giving the issuer the 

right to redeem the securities prior to maturity at a predetermined price and time. 

Certificate of Deposit (CD).  Bank obligation issued by a financial institution generally offering 

a fixed rate of return (coupon) for a specified period of time (maturity). Can be as long as 10 years 

to maturity, but most CDs purchased by public agencies are one year and under.  

Collateral.  Investment securities or other property that a borrower pledges to secure repayment 

of a loan, secure deposits of public monies, or provide security for a repurchase agreement. 

Collateralization.  Process by which a borrower pledges securities, property, or other deposits 

for securing the repayment of a loan and/or security. 

Collateralized Mortgage Obligation  (CMO).   A  security  that  pools  together mortgages  and 

separates them into short, medium, and long‐term positions (called tranches). Tranches are set 

up to pay different rates of interest depending upon their maturity. Interest payments are usually 

paid monthly. In “plain vanilla” CMOs, principal is not paid on a tranche until all shorter tranches 

have been paid off. This system provides interest and principal in a more predictable manner. A 

single pool of mortgages can be carved up into numerous tranches each with its own payment 

and risk characteristics. 

Commercial Paper.   Short  term unsecured promissory note  issued by a company or  financial 

institution.  Issued at a discount and matures for par or face value. Usually a maximum maturity 

of 270 days and given a short‐term debt rating by one or more NRSROs. 

Convexity.  A measure of a bondʹs price sensitivity to changing interest rates. A high convexity 

indicates greater sensitivity of a bondʹs price to interest rate changes. 

Corporate Note.  A debt instrument issued by a corporation with a maturity of greater than one 

year and less than ten years.  

Counterparty.  The other party in a two‐party financial transaction. ʺCounterparty riskʺ refers to 

the risk that the other party to a transaction will fail in its related obligations. For example, the 

bank or broker/dealer in a repurchase agreement. 

Coupon Rate.  Annual rate of interest on a debt security, expressed as a percentage of the bond’s 



Pg. 23, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 23 Investment Policies 

 

face value. 

Current Yield.  Annual rate of return on a bond based on its price. Calculated as (coupon rate / 

price), but does not accurately reflect a bond’s true yield level. 

Custody.  Safekeeping services offered by a bank, financial institution, or trust company, referred 

to as  the “custodian.” Service normally  includes  the holding and  reporting of  the  customerʹs 

securities, the collection and disbursement of income, securities settlement, and market values. 

Dealer.  A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all transactions, buying and selling 

for his/her own account. 

Delivery Versus Payment (DVP).  Settlement procedure in which securities are delivered versus 

payment of cash, but only after cash has been  received. Most security  transactions,  including 

those through the Fed Securities Wire system and DTC, are done DVP as a protection for both the 

buyer and seller of securities. 

Depository Trust Company  (DTC).   A  firm  through which members  can use  a  computer  to 

arrange for securities to be delivered to other members without physical delivery of certificates. 

A member of the Federal Reserve System and owned mostly by the New York Stock Exchange, 

the Depository  Trust  Company  uses  computerized  debit  and  credit  entries. Most  corporate 

securities, commercial paper, CDs, and BAs clear through DTC. 

Derivatives.    (1) Financial  instruments whose return profile  is  linked  to, or derived  from,  the 

movement of one or more underlying index or security, and may include a leveraging factor, or 

(2) financial contracts based upon notional amounts whose value is derived from an underlying 

index or security (interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equities, or commodities). For hedging 

purposes, common derivatives are options, futures, interest rate swaps, and swaptions.   

Derivative Security.  Financial instrument created from, or whose value depends upon, one or 

more underlying assets or indexes of asset values. 

Designated Bond.  FFCB’s regularly issued, liquid, non‐callable securities that generally have a 

2  to  3‐year  original maturity. New  issues  of Designated  Bonds  are  $1  billion  or  larger.  Re‐

openings  of  existing  Designated  Bond  issues  are  generally  a  minimum  of  $100  million. 

Designated Bonds are offered through a syndicate of two to six dealers. Twice each month the 

Funding Corporation announces its intention to issue a new Designated Bond, reopen an existing 

issue, or to not issue or reopen a Designated Bond. Issues under the Designated Bond program 

constitute  the  same  credit  standing  as  other  FFCB  issues;  they  simply  add  organization  and 

liquidity to the intermediate‐ and long‐term Agency market. 

Discount Notes.    Unsecured  general  obligations  issued  by  Federal Agencies  at  a  discount. 

Discount notes mature at par and can range in maturity from overnight to one year. Very large 

primary (new issue) and secondary markets exist. 



Pg. 24, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 24 Investment Policies 
 

Discount Rate.   Rate  charged by  the  system of Federal Reserve Banks on overnight  loans  to 

member banks. Changes to this rate are administered by the Federal Reserve and closely mirror 

changes to the “fed funds rate.” 

Discount Securities.  Non‐interest bearing money market instruments that are issued at discount 

and  redeemed  at maturity  for  full  face value. Examples  include: U.S. Treasury Bills, Federal 

Agency Discount Notes, Bankersʹ Acceptances, and Commercial Paper. 

Discount.  The amount by which a bond or other financial instrument sells below its face value. 

See also ʺPremium.ʺ 

Diversification.    Dividing  investment  funds  among  a  variety  of  security  types, maturities, 

industries, and issuers offering potentially independent returns. 

Dollar Price.   A bond’s cost expressed as a percentage of  its  face value. For example, a bond 

quoted at a dollar price of 95 ½, would have a principal cost of $955 per $1,000 of face value. 

Duff & Phelps.  One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and bank debt 

issues. 

Duration.   The weighted average maturity of a security’s or portfolio’s cash‐flows, where  the 

present  values  of  the  cash‐flows  serve  as  the  weights.  The  greater  the  duration  of  a 

security/portfolio,  the greater  its percentage price volatility with respect  to changes  in  interest 

rates. Used as a measure of risk and a key tool for managing a portfolio versus a benchmark and 

for hedging  risk. There  are  also different  kinds  of duration used  for different purposes  (e.g. 

MacAuley Duration, Modified Duration). 

Fannie Mae.  See ʺFederal National Mortgage Association.ʺ 

Fed Money Wire.   A computerized communications system that connects the Federal Reserve 

System with its member banks, certain U. S. Treasury offices, and the Washington D.C. office of 

the Commodity Credit Corporation. The  Fed Money Wire  is  the  book  entry  system  used  to 

transfer cash balances between banks for themselves and for customer accounts. 

Fed Securities Wire.  A computerized communications system that facilitates book entry transfer 

of securities between banks, brokers and customer accounts, used primarily for settlement of U.S. 

Treasury and Federal Agency securities. 

Fed.  See ʺFederal Reserve System.ʺ 

Federal Agency Security.   A debt  instrument  issued by one of  the Federal Agencies.   Federal 

Agencies are considered second in credit quality and liquidity only to U.S. Treasuries. 

Federal Agency.  Government sponsored/owned entity created by the U.S. Congress, generally 

for  the  purpose  of  acting  as  a  financial  intermediary  by  borrowing  in  the marketplace  and 

directing proceeds to specific areas of the economy considered to otherwise have restricted access 

to credit markets. The largest Federal Agencies are GNMA, FNMA, FHLMC, FHLB, FFCB, SLMA, 



Pg. 25, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 25 Investment Policies 

 

and TVA. 

Federal  Deposit  Insurance  Corporation  (FDIC).    Federal  agency  that  insures  deposits  at 

commercial banks, currently to a limit of $250,000 per depositor per bank. 

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB).  One of the large Federal Agencies.  A government sponsored 

enterprise  (GSE)  system  that  is  a  network  of  cooperatively‐owned  lending  institutions  that 

provides credit services to farmers, agricultural cooperatives and rural utilities. The FFCBs act as 

financial intermediaries that borrow money in the capital markets and use the proceeds to make 

loans  and provide  other  assistance  to  farmers  and  farm‐affiliated  businesses. Consists  of  the 

consolidated operations of the Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, and 

Federal  Land  Banks.    Frequent  issuer  of  discount  notes,  agency  notes  and  callable  agency 

securities. FFCB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although 

it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and 

agricultural industry. Also, issues note under its “designated note” program. 

Federal Funds (Fed Funds).  Funds placed in Federal Reserve Banks by depository institutions 

in excess of current reserve requirements, and frequently loaned or borrowed on an overnight 

basis between depository institutions. 

Federal Funds Rate  (Fed Funds Rate).   The  interest  rate  charged by a depository  institution 

lending Federal Funds to another depository institution. The Federal Reserve influences this rate 

by establishing a  ʺtargetʺ Fed Funds  rate associated with  the Fedʹs management of monetary 

policy. 

Federal Home Loan Bank System (FHLB).   One of the  large Federal Agencies. A government 

sponsored  enterprise  (GSE)  system,  consisting  of wholesale  banks  (currently  twelve  district 

banks) owned by their member banks, which provides correspondent banking services and credit 

to various financial institutions, financed by the issuance of securities. The principal purpose of 

the FHLB  is  to add  liquidity  to  the mortgage markets. Although FHLB does not directly fund 

mortgages,  it provides a stable supply of credit  to  thrift  institutions  that make new mortgage 

loans. FHLB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it 

is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and 

housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes and callable agency securities. 

Also, issues notes under its “global note” and “TAP” programs. 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or ̋ Freddie Macʺ).  One of the large Federal 

Agencies.  A  government  sponsored  public  corporation  (GSE)  that  provides  stability  and 

assistance  to  the  secondary market  for  home mortgages  by  purchasing  first mortgages  and 

participation interests financed by the sale of debt and guaranteed mortgage backed securities. 

FHLMC debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is 

considered  to have minimal credit risk due  to  its  importance  to  the U.S.  financial system and 

housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities, and 

MBS. Also, issues notes under its “reference note” program. 



Pg. 26, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 26 Investment Policies 
 

Federal National Mortgage Association  (FNMA or  ʺFannie Maeʺ).   One of  the  large Federal 

Agencies. A  government  sponsored  public  corporation  (GSE)  that  provides  liquidity  to  the 

residential  mortgage  market  by  purchasing  mortgage  loans  from  lenders,  financed  by  the 

issuance of debt securities and MBS (pools of mortgages packaged together as a security). FNMA 

debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered 

to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. 

Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities and MBS. Also issues 

notes under its “benchmark note” program. 

Federal Reserve Bank.  One of the 12 distinct banks of the Federal Reserve System. 

Federal Reserve System (the Fed).   The independent central bank system of the United States 

that establishes and conducts the nationʹs monetary policy. This is accomplished in three major 

ways: (1) raising or lowering bank reserve requirements, (2) raising or lowering the target Fed 

Funds  Rate  and  Discount  Rate,  and  (3)  in  open  market  operations  by  buying  and  selling 

government securities. The Federal Reserve System is made up of twelve Federal Reserve District 

Banks, their branches, and many national and state banks throughout the nation. It is headed by 

the seven‐member Board of Governors known as the “Federal Reserve Board” and headed by its 

Chairman. 

Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc.  (FINRA).   A private corporation  that acts as a 

self‐regulatory  organization  (SRO).  FINRA  is  the  successor  to  the  National  Association  of 

Securities Dealers,  Inc.  (NASD). Though sometimes mistaken  for a government agency,  it  is a 

non‐governmental organization  that performs  financial regulation of member brokerage  firms 

and exchange markets. The government also has a regulatory arm for investments, the Securities 

and Exchange Commission (SEC). 

Fiscal Agent/Paying Agent.  A bank or trust company that acts, under a trust agreement with a 

corporation or municipality, in the capacity of general treasurer. The agent performs such duties 

as making coupon payments, paying rents, redeeming bonds, and handling taxes relating to the 

issuance of bonds. 

Fitch Investors Service, Inc.  One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and 

municipal debt issues. 

Floating Rate Security (FRN or “floater”).  A bond with an interest rate that is adjusted according 

to changes in an interest rate or index.  Differs from variable‐rate debt in that the changes to the 

rate take place immediately when the index changes, rather than on a predetermined schedule. 

See also “Variable Rate Security.” 

Freddie Mac.  See ʺFederal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation.ʺ 

Ginnie Mae.  See ʺGovernment National Mortgage Association.ʺ 

Global Notes:  Notes designed to qualify for immediate trading in both the domestic U.S. capital 

market and in foreign markets around the globe. Usually large issues that are sold to investors 



Pg. 27, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 27 Investment Policies 

 

worldwide and therefore have excellent liquidity. Despite their global sales, global notes sold in 

the U.S. are typically denominated in U.S. dollars. 

Government National Mortgage Association  (GNMA  or  ʺGinnie Maeʺ).   One  of  the  large 

Federal  Agencies.  Government‐owned  Federal  Agency  that  acquires,  packages,  and  resells 

mortgages  and mortgage  purchase  commitments  in  the  form  of mortgage‐backed  securities. 

Largest issuer of mortgage pass‐through securities. GNMA debt is guaranteed by the full faith 

and credit of the U.S. government (one of the few agencies that are actually full faith and credit 

of the U.S. government). 

Government Securities.  An obligation of the U.S. government, backed by the full faith and credit 

of the government. These securities are regarded as the highest quality of investment securities 

available in the U.S. securities market. See ʺTreasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, and SLGS.ʺ 

Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE).  Privately owned entity subject to federal regulation 

and supervision, created by the U.S. Congress to reduce the cost of capital for certain borrowing 

sectors  of  the  economy  such  as  students,  farmers,  and homeowners. GSEs  carry  the  implicit 

backing of the U.S. government, but they are not direct obligations of the U.S. government. For 

this reason, these securities will offer a yield premium over U.S. Treasuries. Examples of GSEs 

include: FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA, and SLMA. 

Government Sponsored Enterprise Security.   A security  issued by a Government Sponsored 

Enterprise. Considered Federal Agency Securities. 

Index.   A  compilation  of  statistical  data  that  tracks  changes  in  the  economy  or  in  financial 

markets. 

Interest‐Only (IO) STRIP.  A security based solely on the interest payments from the bond. After 

the principal has been repaid, interest payments stop and the value of the security falls to nothing.   

Therefore,  IOs  are  considered  risky  investments.  Usually  associated  with  mortgage‐backed 

securities. 

Internal Controls.  An internal control structure ensures that the assets of the entity are protected 

from  loss,  theft,  or misuse.  The  internal  control  structure  is  designed  to  provide  reasonable 

assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that 1) 

the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and 2) the valuation of 

costs and benefits requires estimates and  judgments by management. Internal controls should 

address the following points:  

 

1. Control of collusion ‐ Collusion is a situation where two or more employees are working 

in conjunction to defraud their employer.  

 



Pg. 28, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 28 Investment Policies 
 

2. Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping ‐ A separation 
of duties is achieved by separating the person who authorizes or performs the transaction 

from the people who record or otherwise account for the transaction.  

 

3. Custodial  safekeeping  ‐  Securities  purchased  from  any  bank  or  dealer  including 
appropriate collateral (as defined by state law) shall be placed with an independent third 

party for custodial safekeeping.  

 

4. Avoidance  of physical delivery  securities  ‐  Book‐entry  securities  are much  easier  to 

transfer and account for since actual delivery of a document never takes place. Delivered 

securities must be properly  safeguarded  against  loss  or destruction. The potential  for 

fraud and loss increases with physically delivered securities.  

 

5. Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members ‐ Subordinate staff members 

must have a clear understanding of their authority and responsibilities to avoid improper 

actions. Clear delegation of authority also preserves the internal control structure that is 

contingent on the various staff positions and their respective responsibilities.  

 

6. Written confirmation of  transactions for  investments and wire  transfers  ‐ Due  to  the 
potential for error and improprieties arising from telephone and electronic transactions, 

all  transactions should be supported by written communications and approved by  the 

appropriate person. Written communications may be via fax  if on  letterhead and  if the 

safekeeping institution has a list of authorized signatures.  

 

7. Development  of  a  wire  transfer  agreement  with  the  lead  bank  and  third‐party 
custodian ‐ The designated official should ensure that an agreement will be entered into 

and will address the following points: controls, security provisions, and responsibilities 

of each party making and receiving wire transfers. 

 

Inverse Floater.  A floating rate security structured in such a way that it reacts inversely to the 

direction of  interest  rates. Considered  risky as  their value moves  in  the opposite direction of 

normal fixed‐income investments and whose interest rate can fall to zero. 

Investment  Advisor.    A  company  that  provides  professional  advice  managing  portfolios, 

investment recommendations, and/or research in exchange for a management fee.   

Investment Adviser Act of 1940. Federal legislation that sets the standards by which investment 

companies,  such  as  mutual  funds,  are  regulated  in  the  areas  of  advertising,  promotion, 

performance reporting requirements, and securities valuations. 

Investment Grade.   Bonds  considered  suitable  for preservation of  invested  capital,  including 

bonds  rated  a minimum of Baa3 by Moody’s, BBB‐ by  Standard & Poor’s, or BBB‐ by Fitch. 

Although  “BBB”  rated  bonds  are  considered  investment  grade, most  public  agencies  cannot 

invest in securities rated below “A.” 



Pg. 29, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 29 Investment Policies 

 

Liquidity.  Relative ease of converting an asset into cash without significant loss of value. Also, a 

relative measure of cash and near‐cash  items  in a portfolio of assets. Additionally,  it  is a term 

describing  the marketability of a money market  security  correlating  to  the narrowness of  the 

spread between the bid and ask prices. 

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).  An investment by local governments in which their 

money  is  pooled  as  a  method  for  managing  local  funds,  (e.g.,  Florida  State  Board  of 

Administration’s Florida Prime Fund). 

Long‐Term Core Investment Program.  Funds that are not needed within a one‐year period. 

Market Value.  The fair market value of a security or commodity. The price at which a willing 

buyer and seller would pay for a security. 

Mark‐to‐market.   Adjusting  the value of an asset  to  its market value, reflecting  in the process 

unrealized gains or losses. 

Master Repurchase Agreement.  A widely accepted standard agreement form published by the 

Securities  Industry  and  Financial Markets  Association  (SIFMA)  that  is  used  to  govern  and 

document Repurchase Agreements and protect the interest of parties in a repo transaction. 

Maturity Date.  Date on which principal payment of a financial obligation is to be paid. 

Medium Term Notes (MTNʹs).  Used frequently to refer to corporate notes of medium maturity 

(5‐years and under). Technically, any debt security issued by a corporate or depository institution 

with a maturity from 1 to 10 years and issued under an MTN shelf registration. Usually issued in 

smaller  issues  with  varying  coupons  and  maturities,  and  underwritten  by  a  variety  of 

broker/dealers (as opposed to large corporate deals issued and underwritten all at once in large 

size and with a fixed coupon and maturity). 

Money Market.   The market  in which  short‐term debt  instruments  (bills,  commercial paper, 

bankers’ acceptance, etc.) are issued and traded. 

Money Market Mutual Fund (MMF).  A type of mutual fund that invests solely in money market 

instruments, such as: U.S. Treasury bills, commercial paper, bankersʹ acceptances, and repurchase 

agreements. Money market mutual  funds  are  registered with  the  SEC under  the  Investment 

Company Act of 1940 and are subject to “rule 2a‐7” which significantly limits average maturity 

and credit quality of holdings. MMF’s are managed to maintain a stable net asset value (NAV) of 

$1.00. Many MMFs carry ratings by a NRSRO. 

Moodyʹs Investors Service.  One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and 

municipal debt issues. 

Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS).  Mortgage‐backed securities represent an ownership interest 

in a pool of mortgage loans made by financial institutions, such as savings and loans, commercial 



Pg. 30, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 30 Investment Policies 
 

banks, or mortgage companies, to finance the borrowerʹs purchase of a home or other real estate. 

The majority of MBS are issued and/or guaranteed by GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC. There are a 

variety of MBS structures with varying levels of risk and complexity. All MBS have reinvestment 

risk as actual principal and interest payments are dependent on the payment of the underlying 

mortgages which can be prepaid by mortgage holders  to refinance and  lower rates or simply 

because the underlying property was sold. 

Mortgage Pass‐Through Securities.   A pool  of  residential mortgage  loans with  the monthly 

interest and principal distributed to investors on a pro‐rata basis. The largest issuer is GNMA. 

Municipal Note/Bond.  A debt instrument issued by a state or local government unit or public 

agency. The vast majority of municipals are exempt from state and federal income tax, although 

some non‐qualified issues are taxable. 

Mutual  Fund.    Portfolio  of  securities  professionally  managed  by  a  registered  investment 

company that issues shares to investors. Many different types of mutual funds exist (e.g., bond, 

equity, and money market funds); all except money market funds operate on a variable net asset 

value (NAV). 

Negotiable Certificate of Deposit  (Negotiable CD).   Large denomination CDs  ($100,000 and 

larger) that are issued in bearer form and can be traded in the secondary market. 

Net Asset Value.  The market value of one share of an investment company, such as a mutual 

fund. This  figure  is  calculated  by  totaling  a  fundʹs  assets  including  securities,  cash,  and  any 

accrued earnings, then subtracting the total assets from the fundʹs  liabilities, and dividing this 

total by the number of shares outstanding. This is calculated once a day based on the closing price 

for each security in the fundʹs portfolio. (See below.)  

 

[(Total assets) ‐ (Liabilities)]/(Number of shares outstanding) 

 

NRSRO.   A “Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization” (NRSRO)  is a designated 

rating organization  that  the SEC has deemed a  strong national presence  in  the U.S. NRSROs 

provide credit ratings on corporate and bank debt issues. Only ratings of a NRSRO may be used 

for the regulatory purposes of rating. Includes Moody’s, S&P, Fitch, and Duff & Phelps. 

Offered Price.  See also ʺAsk Price.ʺ 

Open Market Operations.  A Federal Reserve monetary policy tactic entailing the purchase or 

sale of government securities  in  the open market by  the Federal Reserve System  from and  to 

primary dealers in order to influence the money supply, credit conditions, and interest rates. 

Par Value.  The face value, stated value, or maturity value of a security. 

Physical Delivery.  Delivery of readily available underlying assets at contract maturity. 

Portfolio.  Collection of securities and investments held by an investor. 



Pg. 31, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 31 Investment Policies 

 

Premium.  The amount by which a bond or other financial instrument sells above its face value. 

See also ʺDiscount.ʺ 

Primary Dealer.   A designation given  to  certain government  securities dealer by  the Federal 

Reserve Bank of New York. Primary dealers can buy and sell government securities directly with 

the Fed. Primary dealers also submit daily reports of market activity and security positions held 

to the Fed and are subject to its informal oversight. Primary dealers are the largest buyers and 

sellers by volume in the U.S. Treasury securities market. 

Prime Paper.  Commercial paper of high quality. Highest rated paper is A‐1+/A‐1 by S&P and P‐

1 by Moody’s. 

Principal.  Face value of a financial instrument on which interest accrues. May be less than par 

value if some principal has been repaid or retired. For a transaction, principal is par value times 

price and includes any premium or discount. 

Prudent Expert Rule. Standard that requires that a fiduciary manage a portfolio with the care, 

skill, prudence, and diligence, under the circumstances then prevailing, that a prudent person 

acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise 

of a like character and with like aims. This statement differs from the “prudent person” rule in 

that familiarity with such matters suggests a higher standard than simple prudence. 

Prudent Investor Standard.  Standard that requires that when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, 

acquiring,  exchanging,  selling,  or managing public  funds,  a  trustee  shall  act with  care,  skill, 

prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, 

the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person 

acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of 

a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of 

the agency. More stringent than the “prudent person” standard as it implies a level of knowledge 

commensurate with the responsibility at hand. 

Qualified  Public Depository  ‐  Per  Subsection  280.02(26),  F.S.,  “qualified  public  depository” 

means any bank, savings bank, or savings association that: 

 

1. Is organized and exists under the laws of the United States, the laws of this state or any 

other state or territory of the United States. 

 

2. Has its principal place of business in this state or has a branch office in this state which is 

authorized under the laws of this state or of the United States to receive deposits in this 

state. 

 

3. Has  deposit  insurance  under  the  provision  of  the  Federal Deposit  Insurance Act,  as 

amended, 12 U.S.C. ss.1811 et seq. 

 



Pg. 32, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 32 Investment Policies 
 

4. Has procedures and practices for accurate identification, classification, reporting, and 

collateralization of public deposits. 

 

5. Meets all requirements of Chapter 280, F.S. 

 

6. Has been designated by the Chief Financial Officer as a qualified public depository. 

Range Note.  A type of structured note that accrues interest daily at a set coupon rate that is tied 

to an index. Most range notes have two coupon levels; a higher accrual rate for the period the 

index is within a designated range, the lower accrual rate for the period that the index falls outside 

the designated range. This lower rate may be zero and may result in zero earnings. 

Rate of Return.  Amount of income received from an investment, expressed as a percentage of 

the amount invested.   

Realized Gains (Losses).   The difference between the sale price of an investment and its book 

value. Gains/losses are “realized” when the security is actually sold, as compared to “unrealized” 

gains/losses which are based on current market value. See “Unrealized Gains (Losses).” 

Reference Bills:  FHLMC’s short‐term debt program created to supplement its existing discount 

note program by offering issues from one month through one year, auctioned on a weekly or on 

an alternating four‐week basis (depending upon maturity) offered in sizeable volumes ($1 billion 

and  up)  on  a  cycle  of  regular,  standardized  issuance.  Globally  sponsored  and  distributed, 

Reference Bill issues are intended to encourage active trading and market‐making and facilitate 

the development of a term repo market. The program was designed to offer predictable supply, 

pricing  transparency,  and  liquidity,  thereby  providing  alternatives  to  U.S.  Treasury  bills. 

FHLMC’s  Reference  Bills  are  unsecured  general  corporate  obligations.  This  program 

supplements  the  corporation’s  existing  discount  note  program.  Issues  under  the  Reference 

program constitute the same credit standing as other FHLMC discount notes; they simply add 

organization and liquidity to the short‐term Agency discount note market. 

Reference Notes:  FHLMC’s intermediate‐term debt program with issuances of 2, 3, 5, 10, and 30‐

year maturities. Initial issuances range from $2 ‐ $6 billion with re‐openings ranging $1 ‐ $4 billion.   

The notes are high‐quality bullet structures securities that pay interest semiannually. Issues under 

the Reference program constitute the same credit standing as other FHLMC notes; they simply 

add organization and liquidity to the intermediate‐ and long‐term Agency market. 

Repurchase Agreement (Repo).   A short‐term  investment vehicle where an  investor agrees  to 

buy securities from a counterparty and simultaneously agrees to resell the securities back to the 

counterparty at an agreed upon time and for an agreed upon price. The difference between the 

purchase  price  and  the  sale  price  represents  interest  earned  on  the  agreement.  In  effect,  it 

represents a collateralized loan to the investor, where the securities are the collateral. Can be DVP, 

where securities are delivered to the investor’s custodial bank, or “tri‐party” where the securities 

are delivered to a third‐party intermediary. Any type of security can be used as “collateral,” but 

only some types provide the investor with special bankruptcy protection under the law. Repos 



Pg. 33, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 33 Investment Policies 

 

should  be  undertaken  only when  an  appropriate  Securities  Industry  and  Financial Markets 

Association (SIFMA) approved master repurchase agreement is in place. 

Reverse Repurchase Agreement (Reverse Repo).  A repo from the point of view of the original 

seller  of  securities.  Used  by  dealers  to  finance  their  inventory  of  securities  by  essentially 

borrowing at short‐term rates. Can also be used to leverage a portfolio and in this sense, can be 

considered risky if used improperly. 

Safekeeping.    Service  offered  for  a  fee,  usually  by  financial  institutions,  for  the  holding  of 

securities and other valuables. Safekeeping is a component of custody services. 

Secondary Market.   Markets  for  the  purchase  and  sale  of  any  previously  issued  financial 

instrument. 

Securities  Industry  and  Financial Markets  Association  (SIFMA).    The  bond market  trade 

association representing the largest securities markets in the world. In addition to publishing a 

Master  Repurchase  Agreement,  widely  accepted  as  the  industry  standard  document  for 

Repurchase Agreements, the SIFMA also recommends bond market closures and early closes due 

to holidays. 

Securities Lending.  An arrangement between and investor and a custody bank that allows the 

custody bank  to “loan”  the  investors  investment holdings, reinvest  the proceeds  in permitted 

investments, and shares any profits with the investor. Should be governed by a securities lending 

agreement. Can increase the risk of a portfolio in that the investor takes on the default risk on the 

reinvestment at the discretion of the custodian. 

Sinking  Fund.    A  separate  accumulation  of  cash  or  investments  (including  earnings  on 

investments) in a fund in accordance with the terms of a trust agreement or indenture, funded by 

periodic deposits by the issuer (or other entity responsible for debt service), for the purpose of 

assuring timely availability of moneys for payment of debt service. Usually used in connection 

with term bonds. 

Spread.    The  difference  between  the  price  of  a  security  and  similar maturity U.S.  Treasury 

investments, expressed  in percentage  terms or basis points. A spread can also be  the absolute 

difference in yield between two securities. The securities can be in different markets or within the 

same securities market between different credits, sectors, or other relevant factors. 

Standard &  Poorʹs.     One  of  several NRSROs  that  provide  credit  ratings  on  corporate  and 

municipal debt issues. 

STRIPS  (Separate  Trading  of  Registered  Interest  and  Principal  of  Securities).    Acronym 

applied  to  U.S.  Treasury  securities  that  have  had  their  coupons  and  principal  repayments 

separated  into  individual  zero‐coupon  Treasury  securities.  The  same  technique  and  ʺstripsʺ 

description can be applied to non‐Treasury securities (e.g., FNMA strips). 



Pg. 34, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 34 Investment Policies 
 

Structured Notes.   Notes  that  have  imbedded  into  their  structure  options  such  as  step‐up 

coupons or derivative‐based returns. 

Supranational.  Supranational  organizations  are  international  financial  institutions  that  are 

generally established by agreements among nations, with member nations contributing capital 

and participating in management. These agreements provide for limited immunity from the laws 

of  member  countries.  Bonds  issued  by  these  institutions  are  part  of  the  broader  class  of 

Supranational, Sovereign, and Non‐U.S. Agency (SSA) sector bonds. Supranational bonds finance 

economic  and  infrastructure  development  and  support  environmental  protection,  poverty 

reduction, and renewable energy around the globe. For example, the World Bank, International 

Finance Corporation (IFC), and African Development Bank (AfDB) have “green bond” programs 

specifically designed for energy resource conservation and management. Supranational bonds, 

which are issued by multi‐national organizations that transcend national boundaries. Examples 

include the World Bank, African Development Bank, and European Investment Bank. 

Swap.  Trading one asset for another. 

TAP Notes:  Federal Agency notes issued under the FHLB TAP program. Launched in 6/99 as a 

refinement  to  the FHLB bullet bond  auction process.  In  a break  from  the FHLB’s  traditional 

practice of bringing numerous  small  issues  to market with  similar maturities,  the TAP  Issue 

Program  uses  the  four most  common maturities  and  reopens  them  up  regularly  through  a 

competitive auction. These maturities  (2, 3, 5, and 10 year) will  remain open  for  the calendar 

quarter, after which they will be closed and a new series of TAP issues will be opened to replace 

them.  This  reduces  the  number  of  separate  bullet  bonds  issued,  but  generates  enhanced 

awareness and liquidity in the marketplace through increased issue size and secondary market 

volume. 

Tennessee Valley  Authority  (TVA).    One  of  the  large  Federal  Agencies.  A wholly  owned 

corporation of the United States government that was established in 1933 to develop the resources 

of the Tennessee Valley region in order to strengthen the regional and national economy and the 

national defense. Power operations are  separated  from non‐power operations. TVA  securities 

represent obligations of TVA, payable solely  from TVAʹs net power proceeds, and are neither 

obligations of nor guaranteed by the United States. TVA is currently authorized to issue debt up 

to $30 billion. Under this authorization, TVA may also obtain advances from the U.S. Treasury of 

up to $150 million. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, and callable agency securities.   

Total Return.    Investment performance measured over a period of  time  that  includes coupon 

interest,  interest  on  interest,  and  both  realized  and  unrealized  gains  or  losses.  Total  return 

includes,  therefore, any market value appreciation/depreciation on  investments held at period 

end. 

Treasuries.   Collective term used to describe debt instruments backed by the U.S. government 

and issued through the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Includes Treasury bills, Treasury notes, 

and Treasury bonds.  Also a benchmark term used as a basis by which the yields of non‐Treasury 

securities are compared (e.g., ʺtrading at 50 basis points over Treasuriesʺ). 



Pg. 35, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 35 Investment Policies 

 

Treasury Bills (T‐Bills).   Short‐term direct obligations of the United States government issued 

with an original term of one year or less. Treasury bills are sold at a discount from face value and 

do not pay interest before maturity. The difference between the purchase price of the bill and the 

maturity value is the interest earned on the bill. Currently, the U.S. Treasury issues 4‐week, 13‐

week, and 26‐week T‐Bills. 

Treasury Bonds.  Long‐term interest‐bearing debt securities backed by the U.S. government and 

issued with maturities of ten years and longer by the U.S. Department of the Treasury.  

Treasury Notes.    Intermediate  interest‐bearing debt securities backed by  the U.S. government 

and issued with maturities ranging from one to ten years by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. 

The Treasury currently issues 2‐year, 3‐year, 5‐year, and 10‐year Treasury Notes. 

Trustee.   A bank designated by an  issuer of  securities as  the  custodian of  funds and official 

representative  of  bondholders.  Trustees  are  appointed  to  insure  compliance with  the  bond 

documents and to represent bondholders in enforcing their contract with the issuer. 

Uniform Net Capital Rule.  SEC Rule 15c3‐1 that outlines the minimum net capital ratio (ratio of 

indebtedness to net liquid capital) of member firms and non‐member broker/dealers. 

Unrealized Gains (Losses).  The difference between the market value of an investment and its 

book  value.  Gains/losses  are  “realized” when  the  security  is  actually  sold,  as  compared  to 

“unrealized” gains/losses which are based on current market value. See also “Realized Gains 

(Losses).” 

Variable‐Rate Security.   A bond  that bears  interest at a rate  that varies over  time based on a 

specified schedule of adjustment (e.g., daily, weekly, monthly, semi‐annually, or annually). See 

also “Floating Rate Note.” 

Weighted Average Maturity (or just “Average Maturity”).  The average maturity of all securities 

and  investments of a portfolio, determined by multiplying  the par or principal value of each 

security or investment by its maturity (days or years), summing the products, and dividing the 

sum by  the  total principal value of  the portfolio. A  simple measure of  risk of a  fixed‐income 

portfolio. 

Weighted Average Maturity to Call.  The average maturity of all securities and investments of a 

portfolio, adjusted to substitute the first call date per security for maturity date for those securities 

with call provisions. 

Yield Curve.  A graphic depiction of yields on like securities in relation to remaining maturities 

spread over a time line. The traditional yield curve depicts yields on U.S. Treasuries, although 

yield curves exist for Federal Agencies and various credit quality corporates as well. Yield curves 

can  be  positively  sloped  (normal)  where  longer‐term  investments  have  higher  yields,  or 

“inverted” (uncommon) where longer‐term investments have lower yields than shorter ones. 



Pg. 36, Reso. xx-2022 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach 36 Investment Policies 
 

Yield to Call (YTC).  Same as “Yield to Maturity,” except the return is measured to the first call 

date  rather  than  the maturity date. Yield  to  call  can  be  significantly  higher  or  lower  than  a 

security’s yield to maturity. 

Yield to Maturity (YTM).  Calculated return on an investment, assuming all cash‐flows from the 

security are reinvested at the same original yield. Can be higher or lower than the coupon rate 

depending on market rates and whether the security was purchased at a premium or discount. 

There are different conventions for calculating YTM for various types of securities. 

Yield.  There are numerous methods of yield determination. In this glossary, see also ʺCurrent 

Yield,” ʺYield Curve,ʺ ʺYield to Call,ʺ and ʺYield to Maturity.ʺ 

 

 

 



Pg. 37, Reso. xx-2022 
 
 

 
City of Lake Worth 37 Investment Policies 

 

Attachment B 

Investment Pool/Fund Questionnaire 

 

 

1. A description of  eligible  investment  securities,  and  a written  statement of  investment 

policy and objectives. 

 

2. A description of interest calculations and how it is distributed, and how gains and losses 

are treated. 

 

3. Does the pool have a stable net asset value or floating net asset value? 

 

4. What are the liquidity gates and fees? 

 

5. A description of how the securities are safeguarded (including the settlement processes), 

and how often the securities are priced and the program audited. 

 

6. A  description  of who may  invest  in  the  program,  how  often, what  size  deposit  and 

withdrawal are allowed. 

 

7. A schedule for receiving statements and portfolio listings. 

 

8. Are reserves, retained earnings, etc. utilized by the pool/fund? 

 

9. A fee schedule, and when and how is it assessed. 

 

10. Is the pool/fund eligible for bond proceeds and/or will it accept such proceeds? 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE:  November 1, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 86-2022 – FY23 Regional Sewer Budget Amendment 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution 86-2022 adopts a budget amendment to the FY23 Regional Sewer fund increasing 
$1,216,523 of revenues and $1,175,696 of expenditures. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Lake Worth Beach Regional Sewer System is made up of wastewater collection systems 
that connect to the Lake Worth Beach system before being sent to the East Central Regional 
Water Reclamation Facility (ECR) and include the City of Lake Worth Beach and seven other 
entities (Town of Lantana, City of Atlantis, Town of Manalapan, Town of South Palm Beach, 
Village of Palm Springs, Town of Lake Clarke Shores and Palm Beach State College).   

This Budget Amendment corrects some scrivener’s errors on various revenue and expense 
accounts from budget development and changes in the ECR budget that is passed through to 
the City and its Regional Sewer partners. There is a net revenue of $40,827 which will be trued 
up in the year end accounting per the Interlocal Agreement of 2013 with the partner entities. 

Resolution 86-2022 establishes the amended budget for FY23. 

 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 86-2022 to adopt the budget amendment to the 
FY23 Regional Sewer fund increasing $1,216,523 of revenues and $1,175,696 of expenditures.  

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Resolution 86-2022 
Exhibit A 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 

Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income $1,216,523 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows  
 Operating  $1,175,696 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact $40,827 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact: 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department   Regional Sewer  Regional Sewer 

Division  Pumping  Pumping 

GL Description  Various (See Exhibit A)  Various (See Exhibit A) 

GL Account Number  Various (See Exhibit A)  Various (See Exhibit A) 

Project Number  N/A  N/A 

Requested Funds  $1,216,523  $1,175,696 

   

Budget Transfer Impact: N/A 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department    

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation: N/A 

  Expenditure 

Department    

Division   

GL Description   

GL Account Number   

Project Number   

Requested Funds   

 



86-2022 1 

 2 

 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 86-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 4 

FLORIDA, TO ADOPT A BUDGET AMENDMENT TO INCREASE 5 

$1,216,523 OF REVENUES AND $1,175,696 OF EXPENDITURES DUE TO 6 

SCRIVENER’S ERRORS AND CHANGES IN THE EAST CENTRAL 7 

REGIONAL WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY (ECR) BUDGET THAT ARE 8 

PASSED ON TO THE LAKE WORTH BEACH REGIONAL SEWER FUND 9 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 REGIONAL SEWER BUDGET BEGINNING 10 

OCTOBER 1, 2022 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023; AND PROVIDING 11 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 12 

 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) previously adopted 13 

the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Annual Operating Budget pursuant to Resolution No. 69-2022 on 14 

September 22, 2022;  15 

 WHEREAS, the City finds it is necessary and essential to amend the budget for the 16 

Regional Sewer fund to reflect amounts needed to fund various operating expenditures and 17 

revenues to be collected from the Regional Sewer partners for FY 2023;  18 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 19 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 20 

 21 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true and 22 

correct and are hereby incorporated into this Resolution. 23 

 24 

Section 2. As hereinafter stated in this Resolution, the term “fiscal year” shall mean the 25 

period of time beginning October 1, 2022, and ending and including September 30, 2023. 26 

 27 

Section 3 The funds and available resources and revenues that are set out and 28 

attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, be, and the same hereby 29 

are, transferred to provide the monies to be used to pay the necessary operating and 30 

other expenses of the respective funds and departments of the City for the fiscal year. 31 

 32 

Section 4. The sums, which are set out in Exhibit “A” and herein incorporated by 33 

reference, listed as operating and other expenses of the respective funds and 34 

departments of the City, be, and the same hereby are, transferred and shall be paid out 35 

of the revenues herein transferred for the fiscal year. 36 

 37 

Section 5. The revenues and the expenses for which transfers are hereby made, all 38 

set forth above, shall be as set out in the Revised City of Lake Worth Beach Operating 39 

Budget for the fiscal year as attached in Exhibit “A”. 40 

 41 

Section 6. The sums set out in Exhibit “A” are hereinbefore incorporated by reference 42 

and based upon departmental estimates prepared by the City Manager and the Finance 43 

Director, shall be, and the same hereby are, fixed and adopted as the revised budget for 44 

the operation of the City and its other enterprises for the fiscal year. 45 

 46 



Pg. 2, Reso. 86-2022 

 

Section 7. Except as amended in Exhibit “A” hereto, the remainder of the FY 2023 47 

Annual Operating Budget for the fiscal year remains in full force and effect. 48 

 49 

Section 8. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 50 

 51 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner _________, 52 

seconded by Commissioner _____________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was 53 

as follows: 54 

 55 

Mayor Betty Resch 56 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 57 

Commissioner Sarah Malega 58 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 59 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 60 

 61 

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 1st 62 

day of November 2022. 63 

 64 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 65 

 66 

 67 

By: __________________________ 68 

Betty Resch, Mayor 69 

 70 

ATTEST: 71 

 72 

 73 

__________________________ 74 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 75 

 76 



Account Number Account Description
 FY 2023 Original 

Budget 
FY 2023 Revised 

Budget Adjustment
Revenues 405-0000-343.55-51 O&M - Lake Worth Beach 4,110,657.00$       4,410,347.39$       299,690.39$                  

405-0000-343.55-52 O&M - Palm Springs 1,965,381.00         2,132,850.84         167,469.84                    
405-0000-343.55-53 O&M - Lantana 1,229,061.00         1,319,160.53         90,099.53                      
405-0000-343.55-54 O&M - Atlantis 347,362.00            372,826.70            25,464.70                      
405-0000-343.55-55 O&M - PBSC 24,009.00               25,769.07               1,760.07                        
405-0000-343.55-56 O&M - Manalapan 77,317.00               82,984.96               5,667.96                        
405-0000-343.55-57 O&M - South Palm Beach 173,215.00            185,913.10            12,698.10                      
405-0000-343.55.59 O&M - Lake Clarke Shores 400,099.00            431,083.59            30,984.59                      
405-0000-343.56-51 ECR R&R - Lake Worth Beach 746,758.00            994,150.05            247,392.05                    
405-0000-343.56-52 ECR R&R - Palm Springs 479,400.00            638,219.30            158,819.30                    
405-0000-343.56-53 ECR R&R - Lantana 239,242.00            318,499.57            79,257.57                      
405-0000-343.56-54 ECR R&R - Atlantis 71,696.00               95,447.54               23,751.54                      
405-0000-343.56-55 ECR R&R - PBSC 15,965.00               21,254.30               5,289.30                        
405-0000-343.56-56 ECR R&R - Manalapan 22,470.00               29,913.45               7,443.45                        
405-0000-343.56-57 ECR R&R - South Palm Beach 50,557.00               67,305.27               16,748.27                      
405-0000-343.56-59 ECR R&R - Lake Clarke Shores 73,913.00               98,399.52               24,486.52                      
405-0000-343.54-51 LWB R&R - Lake Worth Beach 149,571.00            158,137.04            8,566.04                        
405-0000-343.54-52 LWB R&R - Palm Springs 96,021.00               101,520.00            5,499.00                        
405-0000-343.54-53 LWB R&R - Lantana 47,919.00               50,662.96               2,743.96                        
405-0000-343.54-54 LWB R&R - Atlantis 14,360.00               15,182.61               822.61                           
405-0000-343.54-55 LWB R&R - PBSC 3,198.00                 3,380.87                 182.87                           
405-0000-343.54-56 LWB R&R - Manalapan 4,501.00                 4,758.26                 257.26                           
405-0000-343.54-57 LWB R&R - South Palm Beach 10,126.00               10,706.09               580.09                           
405-0000-343.54-59 LWB R&R - Lake Clarke Shores 14,804.00               15,652.17               848.17                           

TOTAL: 1,216,523.18$               

Expenditures
405-7421-535.34-87 Regional Exp -ECR R & R 1,700,000.00$       2,263,189.00$       563,189.00$                  
405-7421-535.34-85 Regional Exp -Flow 6,551,200.00$       7,199,281.00$       648,081.00$                  
405-7421-535.34-80 Reg System Expense 380,000.00$          365,000.00$          (15,000.00)$                   
405-7421-535.43-10 Water 26,000.00$            26,716.14$            716.14$                         
405-7421-535.43-20 Sewer 2,500.00$               1,812.04$               (687.96)$                        
405-7421-535.43-40 Refuse/Waste Disposal 3,600.00$               3,613.75$               13.75$                           
405-7421-535.46-21 Equipment-General 118,000.00$          100,000$                (18,000.00)$                   
405-7421-535.46-27 Heavy Equip-ext repairs 82,600.00$            80,000.00$            (2,600.00)$                     
405-9010-519.58-70 Bank Charges and Fees 3,900.00$               3,884.00$               (16.00)$                          

TOTAL: 1,175,695.93$               

Net Fiscal Impact 40,827.25$                    

EXHIBIT A


	Top
	A.	1006 RM minutes
	DRAFT 100622 RM minutes

	B.	1012 AWS minutes
	DRAFT 101222 AWS minutes

	A.	Resolution 84-2022 - FDOT License Agreement for 1702 Lake Worth Road
	FDOT License Agreement Staff Report
	Resolution 84-2022
	FDOT License

	B.	Proclamation - Native American Indian Heritage Month
	Proclamation - Native American Indian Heritage Month

	C.	Third Amendment to Retail Lease with B. F. Enterprises, Inc., the current tenant
	BF Enterprises Lease Staff Report
	Third Amendment
	BF Enterprises LW TShirt Co Lease Agreement 06.06.12

	D.	Fourth Amendment to Retail Lease with Pura Vida Treats, Inc., the current tenant/assignee
	Pura Vida Treats (Kilwins)Staff Report
	Fourth Amendment
	Kilwins Maxplan Lease Agreement 02.02.12

	E.	Fifth Amendment to Retail Lease with RVRA, LLC, the current tenant
	RVRA (Mamma Mia's) Staff Report
	Fifth Amendment
	Mamma Mias on the Beach Lease Agreement 02.23.12

	A.	Ordinance No. 2022-19 – Second Reading –  Banning smoking and vaping at city parks and the beach
	Smoking Ban Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-19

	B.	Ordinance No. 2022-22 – Second Reading - Modifying the enforcement process for a noise control violation and for other purposes
	Noise Ordinance Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-22

	C.	Ordinance No. 2022-23 – Second Reading - Amending Code Citation Procedures; Appeals
	Civil Citation Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-23

	A.	Discussion of proposed redistricting maps and public input
	Redistricting Discussion Staff Report
	District Analysis from FAU
	Deviation Summary
	Alternative Districts 1
	Alternative Districts 2
	Alternative Districts 3
	Alternative Districts 4
	Alternative Redistricting Report
	Presentation of District Analysis
	Alternative Map 5 from residents

	A.	Resolution No. 85-2022 – Revised Investment Policy
	Revised Investment Policy Staff Report
	Resolution 85-2022
	Lake Worth Beach Investment Policy - Draft 10-22

	B.	Resolution No. 86-2022 – FY 2023 1st Budget Amendment for Regional Sewer Fund
	Regional Sewer Budget Amendment Staff Report
	Resolution 86-2022
	Exhibit A

	Bottom

